
WORK SESSION: THC/CANNABIS 6:00 P.M. – 6:30 P.M. 
CLOSED SESSION: ATTORNEY-CLIENT - 6:30 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. 

REGULAR WASECA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JUNE 6, 2023, 7:00 PM 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

2. MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENT

Those wishing to speak must state their name and address for the record. Each person will have three 
(3) minutes to make their remarks. Speakers will address all comments to the City Council as a whole. 
The Council may not take action on an item presented during the Public Comment period. When 
appropriate, the Council may refer inquiries and items brought up during the Public Comment period 
to the City Manager for follow-up. 

5. REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS
A. Tina Wilson, PCED, Residential Tax Abatement
B. New Employee Introductions:

1. Jim Sikel – Public Works and Park
2. Kade Madden – Police Department
3. Sheila Jungwirth – Finance & Human Resources Team
4. Carolynn Keck – Finance & Human Resources Team
5. Bobby Houlihan, WWTP Chief Operator – Wastewater Treatment Plant

6. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Minutes: Council Meeting (revised) – May 2, 2023

   Council Meeting & Work Session – May 16, 2023 
B. Payroll & Expenditures 
C. Special Event Permit Application, “The Mill” Liquor License Premise Extension (Lakefest July 4) 
D. “Waseca American Legion #228” Temporary Liquor License (Waseca County Fair July 12-16) 
E. “Waseca County Free Fair/Waseca County Agricultural Society” Temporary Liquor License 

(Waseca County Fair July 12-16) 
F. “C & A Design MN, LLC” Consumption and Display Liquor License (No-sale)  
G. IUOE Local 70 Agreement 
H. Resolution 23-25: Residential Tax Abatement for 1025 Clear Lake Drive 
I. Resolution 23-22: MnDOT Airport Maintenance and Operation Grant (2024-2025) 
J. Airport Board Resignation and Appointment of New Member 
K. Resolution 23-24 “Waseca Hockey Association” Gambling License (Waseca County Fair 

July 12-16) 

7. ACTION AGENDA
A.  Juneteenth Holiday: Amended 2023 Holiday Schedule and Updated Personnel Policy
B. Authorization and Support for application for State Bonding Dollars



i. Resolution 23-26 Support for Bonding Application- Water Tower
ii. Resolution 23-27 Support for Bonding Application- I & I

C. Gaiter Lake Land Development 

8. REPORTS
A. City Manager’s Report
B. Commission Reports

9. ANNOUNCEMENTS

10. ADJOURNMENT



Waseca 
Residential Tax 
Abatement 
Program

5A



Established 
2019

Extended to 
12/2024



Total Abatement amount not 
to exceed $20,458.85 of 
City’s Share of Ad valorem



Process



Tax Abatement Agreement 
with a Resolution

Consent and Assignment by 
Resolution



Q uestions?



1 

MINUTES 
REGULAR WASECA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 2, 2023, 7:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 

1. The Regular Waseca City Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Randy Zimmerman at 7:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL 

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Randy Zimmerman Daren Arndt 
Mark Christiansen Jeremy Conrath 
James Ebertowski Stacey Schroeder 
John Mansfield 

Staff Present: Carl Sonnenberg, City Manager 
Julia Hall, City Clerk 

MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. A moment of silence was observed. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was recited.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

3. Councilmember Conrath made the motion to approve the agenda as amended, adding Jeremiah Miller from
Free Flags for Vets to the “Requests and Presentations” and adding Item 7A to the agenda (attachment A),
seconded by Schroeder. Motion carried 7-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT 

4. 
None. 

REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

5. Jeremiah Miller, Free Flags for Vets, May is Mental Health Awareness Month and they have invited Jeff
Yaldeen who is a motivational speaker on the topic of Mental Health to speak at the High School. This event
is not only for students but for the entire community. Mr. Yaldeen will be speaking to the school faculty in
the morning, students in the afternoon and then to the public. These talks will take place May 11th in the
High School’s Performing Arts Center. Doors open at 6:00 p.m., talk begins at 7:00 p.m. They are asking that
everyone wears green in support of the event. Also, if there is anyone that would like to have a table at the
event as a resource (no selling) please call Mr. Miller at 507-676-0852.  Again, it is May 11th at the
Highschool, Doors open at 6:00 p.m.

CONSENT AGENDA 

6. Councilmember Arndt made the motion to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Ebertowski. Motion
carried 7-0.

5A



2 

ACTION AGENDA 

7. 
A. Motion made by Schroeder to ask the Economic Development Authority (EDA) to make an 

in-kind donation of $1,500 (or 50% of total cost) for a review of sales tax in Waseca to 
provide a basis for any future conversations on the Local Optional Sales Tax (LOST).  No 
matter the decision from the EDA the motion is to approve the $3,000 spending from the 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) on a Sales Tax review, seconded by Mansfield. Motion 
carried 6-1. (Nay, Conrath) 

REPORTS 
8. 

A. City Manager’s Report: 
i. There were no proposals received from the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Gaiter

Lake Property.
a. Will be discussed at a later work session with staff providing some options and

council providing some options
ii. “No Mow May” is not an event in the City of Waseca, and City Code will still be

enforced. Any questions contact City Hall.
iii. There have been 3 events of vandalism already in the City Parks Restrooms, Clear

Lake Park Beach House, Trowbridge Park, and Northeast Park. Staff has some
suggestions on how to help deter vandals.
a. Clear Lake Park Pavilion will be getting cameras per the approved plan for

renovations.
b. Cameras are budgeted in the Capital Improvement Plans for 2024, 2025 and

2026 to install exterior cameras at the parks. This could be moved to an earlier
date using funds that have been saved from estimates vs. actual costs on other
projects in the city. Cameras would be provided by local company Streamline,
and install would be completed by city staff.

c. If exterior cameras are not approved, it would be suggested that all bathrooms
be closed, and the city rents portable toilets at each park.

d. An update to the trespassing guidelines is being completed and will be posted at
parks. This will help hold the vandals accountable.

iv. May 16th work session will be about the City Parks and the Waterpark.
v. There was only one power outage last month and that was a private residence, the

city electrical team assisted them in restoring their electricity.
vi. Waseca Area Foundation awarded three grants to the city. $2,351 for hanging flower

baskets, $2,000 for picnic tables at the waterpark and $1,000 for special events at the
waterpark.

vii. Waseca Lakes Association received $25,000 annually from the City of Waseca for
various programs and needs.

B. Commission Reports 
i. Airport Board: Councilmember Schroeder reported that Blue Earth Aviation is looking

to set up crop dusting. Repairs continue to be made at the airport as they are
discovered. Proof of insurance was obtained for the privately owned hangar. There is
a dip in the runway that is being looked at. Also looking at how to handle rental
contracts and the new hangar space.

ii. Fire Relief Board: Councilmember Conrath reported that they spent their meeting
discussing the fish fry and he was happy to announce that they have ordered more
fish than they did in the past.

iii. Heritage Preservation Commission: Councilmember Ebertowski reported that the HPC
was awarded a Waseca Area Foundation to work on the project with the school



3 

district that will promote the Downtown Historic District and other areas in the City. 
Also working on updating the process for Historical District permits. 

iv. Park Board: Councilmembers Christiansen reported that they discussed the 2023
large park projects, Tink Larson Field fence project is completed, Clear Lake Park
frontage road mill and overlay, completion and reconstruct of Doodlebug Trail; still
need to complete from 11th to the Jr. high, Southview Park basketball court and park
trail resurfacing, tennis and basketball courts at Clear Lake Park, and dog park dirt and
landscaping. Lakefest is being organized this year by Tom Sexton, for the Lakes
Association. At Clear Lake playground there have been bikes and scooters etc. on the
sidewalks, please be respectful of the parks and equipment. Bathrooms are opening
and Tink Larson field has started games. The park clean-up had about 45 people.
There was a clean-up of the dog park, please remember to pick-up after your dogs.
Reminder, May 16th the work session will be with the City Parks Director.

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
9. 

A. Councilmember Christiansen: 
i. Arts Council meeting was May 1st. There were people in attendance. They are always

looking for board members. Don’t hesitate to come in. Starting after Memorial Day
they will be open on Saturdays from 10 a.m. to 1 p.m. They will not be open on the
weekend of 4th of July and the Waseca County Fair, which is only 2 months away.
They had a good turnout for the Jiving Ivan concert last week. It is hard to have
events because it is limited to events upstairs, they are hoping to have a fundraiser in
the future to replace the elevator, price has gone up since they moved into the
building.

B. Councilmember Mansfield: 
i. Reminder that Lake Fest is on 4th of July.

C. Councilmember Ebertowski: 
i. Thank you to Jeremiah Miller from Free Flags for Vets for coming in and for the work

they do. Reminder of the event on May 11th, at the High School doors open at 6:00
p.m.

D. Councilmember Schroeder: 
i. The Lakes Association meetings are held in the East Annex from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00

a.m., the 1st Wednesday of every month.
ii. Happy Birthday a day early to Councilmember Conrath.

E. Mayor Zimmerman: 
i. Thank you to the Rotary Club and their President Ann Fitch, for hosting the delegation

from Moldova to examine Agritourism in Waseca, on April 23rd at Half Pint Brewery.

ADJOURNMENT 
10. There being no further business to be brought before the Council, it was moved by Arndt to adjourn the

meeting at 8:14 p.m., seconded by Conrath. Motion carried 7-0.

______________________________ 
RANDY L. ZIMMERMAN 

______________________________ MAYOR 
JULIA HALL 
CITY CLERK 



4 

Attachment A. 

Title: Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) Revenue Projections 

Meeting Date: May 2, 2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 
7A 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting

Documents: 

NA 

Originating

Department: 

Administration Presented By: Mayor 

Approved By City

Manager:

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030

goals? 

High quality community assets research 

BACKGROUND: Council has had preliminary conversations about a LOST initiative during 2023 for possible

presentation to the State legislature in 2024 with ultimate presentation to the voters on the 2024 ballot. 

Council is being asked to determine the appropriateness of asking the University of Minnesota Extension Office 

of Regional Community Economics to prepare a sales tax revenue data report for projected revenue in support

of a possible bond to construct community amenities in the coming years.  A bond would be paid for with sales

tax revenue.  

The report preparation takes six to eight weeks to process and analyze the data. The report will include expected 

tax revenue, on-line revenue considerations, and will provide current sales tax data.  Also, some perspective will 

be provided whether sales tax is being paid by a city resident or visitor. 

BUDGET IMPACT: The cost of research to produce projected sales tax revenue is $3,000.00.  There may be 

an added fee for a presentation to the Council. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:   The University Extension Office has been widely relied upon to produce 

sales tax data since 2015. 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Council action to authorize the Mayor and City Manager to execute required

sales tax revenue projection documents with the University Extension Office of Regional Community

Economics. 

Request for City Council Action 



1 

MINUTES 
REGULAR WASECA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 7:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 

1. The Regular Waseca City Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Randy Zimmerman at 7:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL 

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Randy Zimmerman Daren Arndt 
Mark Christiansen Jeremy Conrath 
James Ebertowski John Mansfield 
Stacey Schroeder 

Staff Present: Carl Sonnenberg, City Manager 
Nate Willey, City Engineer 
Bill Green, Planning and Zoning Coordinator 
Tina Wilson, PCED, Economic Development Manager 
Julia Hall, City Clerk 

MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. A moment of silence was observed. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was recited.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

3. Councilmember Arndt made a motion to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Conrath. Motion
carried 7-0.

PUBLIC COMMENT 

4. Tom Sexton, 516 9th Street NE; spoke on behalf of the Lakefest clarifying minutes from the May 2nd, 2023,
meeting. Lakefest does not receive funds from the City and they are currently still fundraising for their event.
The minutes of the last meeting will be amended to reflect that it is the Waseca Lakes Association that
receives funds from the City and not Lakefest.

REQUESTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

5. Tina Wilson, PCED, Economic Development Manager present on the Waseca Utilities Economic Development
program provided through SMMPA.

CONSENT AGENDA 

6. Councilmember Conrath made a motion to revise the minutes and present them at the June 6th Council
Meeting and approve the payroll and expenditures as presented, seconded by Schroeder. Motion carried 7-0.

ACTION AGENDA 



2 

7. 
A. Motion made by Mansfield to approve Resolution 23-21, and refund the applicant the 

$520 fee, seconded by Arndt Motion carried7-0. 
B. Motion made by Arndt for staff to continue working on the Comprehensive Plan, seconded 

by Mansfield. Motion carried 7-0. 
C. Public Hearing on the City Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) opened at 7:56. 

1. Michelle Oswald, 916 3rd Avenue SE’ wanted to know:
a. How big a factor is yearly leaf pick up a factor in the SWPP.
b. Does Gaiter Lake flow into Clear Lake?
c. How much does runoff go into Clear Lake?
Answers were: 
a. Without the leave calculation the City would not qualify for the program.
b. Two (2) large pipes go through Gaiter Lake and the County tiles with an outlet to
Clear Lake. 
c. There will be some impact from Gaiter Lake to Clear Lake with runoff, the big
takeaway is to not over fertilize. 

Public Hearing closed at 8:01. 

REPORTS 
8. 

A. City Manager’s Report: 
i. None

B. Commission Reports: 
i. Planning Commission: Councilmember Arndt reported that they had two items that

were presented at council, and that no one was appointed to the HPC board.
ii. Economic Development Authority: Councilmember Mansfield reported they received

a presentation from Cardinal Graphics with the lodging and market analysis and Tina
Wilson attended a conference in Greenville, SC. Most items were tabled due to time
restraints after the presentation.

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
9. 

A. Councilmember Christiansen: 
i. Community Ed has a lot of programs for the summer but remember they fill up fast.
ii. The Prairiefire Plays won’t be available due to their staffing issues and will be missed.
iii. If park vandalism continues may as well just close the parks.
iv. Clean up your yards and take care of your properties.
v. The Memorial Day Parade will be May 29th.
vi. The trail by Kwik Trip North will be reviewed for water flow.

B. Councilmember Ebertowski: 
i. Don’t put grass clippings in the street, it is unsafe for bike (motor and non) riders.
ii. Baby Ebertowski is due in November.

C. Councilmember Conrath: 
i. Would like to look into an ordinance for park vandalism

D. Councilmember Schroeder: 
i. May 14-20 is to Honor Law Enforcement.
ii. The meeting in January moving the city forward was discussed and would like to put

that back in the forefront.
E. Mayor Zimmerman: 



3 

i. The fishing opener was a success for him on Clear Lake.
ii. Would like to hear from the council on what they would like staff to do with Gaiter

Lake.  It was decided to add information to the June 6th agenda.

ADJOURNMENT 
10. There being no further business to be brought before the Council, it was moved by Arndt to adjourn the

meeting at 8:37 p.m., seconded by Schroeder. Motion carried 7-0.

______________________________ 
______________________________ RANDY L. ZIMMERMAN 
JULIA HALL MAYOR 
CITY CLERK 



1 

MINUTES 
WASECA CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

TUESDAY, MAY 16, 2023, 6:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Waseca City Council Work Session began at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Randy Zimmerman Mark Christiansen 
Jeremy Conrath James Ebertowski 
John Mansfield. Stacey Schroeder 
Daren Arndt 

Staff Present: Carl Sonnenberg, City Manager 
Nate Willey, City Engineer 
Brad Dushaw, Parks Superintendent 
Madison Olsem, Waterpark Supervisor 
Tina Wilson, PCED, Economic Development Manager 

PURPOSE 

Brad Dushaw and Madison Olsem discussed the Parks and Waterparks going forward. 

CONVERSATION 

• Brad Dushaw, Parks Superintendent Presented:

1. 200 acres of parkland, which includes approximately 100 acres of nature acres.
2. 9.75 miles of paved hard surface trails and 2.6 miles of low-impact trails.
3. Parks departments maintains a variety of facilities.
4. Vandalism at the parks has gone up and they are looking to add cameras to deter the vandals.
5. Staff regularly inspects park equipment and playgrounds.
6. Many exciting new projects coming up for the parks.
7. There is a plan for ash borer.
8. There is a Gravel Bed Tree Nursery where they grow trees saving over half the cost of buying potted

trees.

• Madison Olsem, Waterpark Supervisor Presented:

1. In 2022 the Waterpark made $44,343 in concessions, $50,227 in admissions, $7,393 in punch card
sales, $27,918 in season passes, and $6,495 in pool rentals.

2. The rates will be adjusted for the 2023 season.
3. Weekly events have been set for the 2023 season.

This being a presentation with no action items, the work session adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 



2 

______________________________ 
RANDY L. ZIMMERMAN 

______________________________ MAYOR 
JULIA HALL 
CITY CLERK 



LIST OF EXPENDITURES

======================================================================

City Council 4,250.00
Streets 30,164.65
Parks 14,289.09
Wastewater 10,380.22
Utility Administration 14,951.88
Utility Offices 15,994.63
Electric  30,519.93
Water 11,384.33
Building and Code Compliance 6,104.80
Police 133,076.11
Administration 0.00
Community Aides 1,719.76
Fire 14,856.95
Paid On Call Fire Department 5,525.68
PEG 492.76
Election Judges 0.00
Finance 15,741.32
Community Development 5,093.72
Engineering 33,276.33
Recreation 9,215.49
Econ Development 6,135.38

Total Gross Payroll 363,173.03     

*Less- Payroll Deductions (133,186.50)    

Net Payroll Cost 229,986.53$        

*These costs are included in Accounts Payable totals below

Accounts Payable

Expenditures dated:
May 12, 2023-06/02/2023
Includes check #'s 159267-159333
Bank ACH Withdrawals……………………………………...………… 638,537.19          

        GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 868,523.72$     

June 6, 2023

6B



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

General Fund

06/02/2023 159310 Quadient Finance POSTAGE 101-15510-0000 1,000.00

          Total 101155100000: 1,000.00

05/31/2023 52327 MN Sales and Use Tax Payable Sales and Use Tax 101-20210-0000 317.73 M

          Total 101202100000: 317.73

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service FEDERAL WITHHOLDING TAX  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21701-0000 19,536.38 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service FEDERAL WITHHOLDING TAX  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21701-0000 18,101.90 M

          Total 101217010000: 37,638.28

05/18/2023 52317 MN Department of Revenue STATE WITHHOLDING TAX  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21702-0000 9,409.89 M

06/01/2023 62301 MN Department of Revenue STATE WITHHOLDING TAX  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21702-0000 8,940.97 M

          Total 101217020000: 18,350.86

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service SOCIAL SECURITY  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21703-0000 7,913.79 M

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service SOCIAL SECURITY  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21703-0000 8,292.24 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service SOCIAL SECURITY  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21703-0000 7,821.80 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service SOCIAL SECURITY  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21703-0000 8,249.72 M

          Total 101217030000: 32,277.55

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH ER Adjustment 101-21704-0000 .05 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA COORD Emplr 1%  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21704-0000 1,285.67 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA COORDINATED Employee  Pay Period: 5/14/202 101-21704-0000 8,357.00 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA POLICE Employee  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21704-0000 7,955.80 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH DEF CONTRIBUTION/EMPL  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21704-0000 58.70 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA COORDINATED Employer  Pay Period: 5/14/202 101-21704-0000 8,357.00 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA POLICE Employer  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21704-0000 11,933.70 M

05/18/2023 52318 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH DEF CONT Employer  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21704-0000 58.70 M

06/01/2023 62302 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA COORD Emplr 1%  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21704-0000 1,223.33 M

06/01/2023 62302 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA COORDINATED Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/202 101-21704-0000 7,951.64 M

06/01/2023 62302 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA POLICE Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21704-0000 8,118.77 M

06/01/2023 62302 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA COORDINATED Employer  Pay Period: 5/28/202 101-21704-0000 7,951.64 M

06/01/2023 62302 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH PERA POLICE Employer  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21704-0000 12,178.15 M

06/01/2023 62302 Public Employees Retirement Assn (ACH ER Adj 101-21704-0000 .02 M

          Total 101217040000: 75,430.17

06/01/2023 159279 IBEW IBEW  UNION DUES  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21707-0000 282.47

06/01/2023 159280 IUOE Local #70 FIRE UNION DUES  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21707-0000 150.50

06/01/2023 159280 IUOE Local #70 IUOE UNION DUES  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21707-0000 470.50

06/01/2023 159281 Law Enforcement Labor Services POLICE SGT/LT DUES  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21707-0000 202.50

06/01/2023 159281 Law Enforcement Labor Services POLICE UNION DUES  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21707-0000 675.00

          Total 101217070000: 1,780.97

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life LIFE INSURANCE MN  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21710-0000 1,031.25 M

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life Dodson June COBRA 101-21710-0000 44.10 M

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life Bruder June COBRA 101-21710-0000 24.75 M

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life Gedicke June COBRA 101-21710-0000 23.30 M

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life LIFE INSURANCE MN  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21710-0000 735.05 M

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     2

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life Schult June COBRA 101-21710-0000 50.20 M

06/01/2023 62306 MN Life Youngberg June COBRA 101-21710-0000 16.50 M

          Total 101217100000: 1,925.15

05/18/2023 159268 NCPERS Minnesota - 8266711 LIFE INSURANCE - PERA  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21711-0000 208.00

          Total 101217110000: 208.00

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service MEDICARE  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21712-0000 2,791.30 M

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service MEDICARE  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21712-0000 2,879.80 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service MEDICARE  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21712-0000 2,736.44 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service MEDICARE  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21712-0000 2,836.51 M

          Total 101217120000: 11,244.05

05/18/2023 52322 MSRS- (DEF COMP) MSRS -  ROTH (AFTER TAX)  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21713-0000 1,000.00 M

05/18/2023 52322 MSRS- (DEF COMP) MSRS -  DEF COMP  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21713-0000 899.00 M

06/01/2023 62307 MSRS- (DEF COMP) MSRS -  ROTH (AFTER TAX)  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21713-0000 1,000.00 M

06/01/2023 62307 MSRS- (DEF COMP) MSRS -  DEF COMP  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21713-0000 899.00 M

          Total 101217130000: 3,798.00

05/18/2023 52320 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 457 ICMA -  ROTH (AFTER TAX)  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21714-0000 350.00 M

05/18/2023 52320 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 457 ICMA DEF COMPENSATION  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21714-0000 603.43 M

06/01/2023 62304 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 457 ICMA -  ROTH (AFTER TAX)  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21714-0000 350.00 M

06/01/2023 62304 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents 457 ICMA DEF COMPENSATION  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21714-0000 603.43 M

          Total 101217140000: 1,906.86

05/18/2023 52326 Colonial Life & Accident Insurance Co COLONIAL LIFE  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21715-0000 993.95 M

05/18/2023 52326 Colonial Life & Accident Insurance Co COLONIAL LIFE  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21715-0000 993.95 M

          Total 101217150000: 1,987.90

05/18/2023 52323 Medsurety HSA Contribution  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21716-0000 1,404.30 M

06/01/2023 62309 Medsurety VEBA Contributions  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21716-0000 10,547.45 M

06/01/2023 62310 Medsurety HSA Contribution  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21716-0000 1,404.30 M

06/01/2023 62311 Medsurety HSA Contribution  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21716-0000 6,977.24 M

          Total 101217160000: 20,333.29

05/18/2023 52319 MN Child Support Payment Center CHILD SUPPORT FLAT AMT  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21717-0000 1,005.07 M

06/01/2023 62303 MN Child Support Payment Center CHILD SUPPORT FLAT AMT  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21717-0000 1,005.07 M

          Total 101217170000: 2,010.14

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company DENTAL FAMILY Employee  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21719-0000 221.00

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company DENTAL EE + CHLDRN  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21719-0000 76.60

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company DENTAL SINGLE Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21719-0000 394.80

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company DENTAL FAMILY Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21719-0000 884.00

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company DENTAL EE + SPOUSE  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21719-0000 403.62

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company Bruder June COBRA 101-21719-0000 28.20

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company Gedicke June COBRA 101-21719-0000 28.20

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company Meyer June COBRA 101-21719-0000 57.66

06/01/2023 159283 Metropolitan Life Insurance Company Schult June COBRA 101-21719-0000 57.66

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     3

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 101217190000: 2,151.74

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Single  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 22.47 M

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Single  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 22.48 M

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Single  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 427.02 M

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Single  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 427.03 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Armendariz May Cobra 101-21720-0000 847.14 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Family  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 17,500.00 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Family  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 17,500.00 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Single  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 13,554.24 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Gedicke - May COBRA 101-21720-0000 847.14 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Single  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 13,554.24 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Employee + 1  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 285.36 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Employee + 1  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 285.44 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Matson - May COBRA 101-21720-0000 847.14 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Employee + 1  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 7,000.00 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Employee + 1  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 7,000.00 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Herschman Adj 101-21720-0000 1,821.35 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Family  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21720-0000 942.20 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare UHC Family  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21720-0000 942.34 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Spiess Adj 101-21720-0000 847.14 M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Sikel Adj 101-21720-0000 5,269.22- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Ferguson Adj 101-21720-0000 974.21- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Armendariz Adj 101-21720-0000 1,787.47- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Kohn Adj 101-21720-0000 1,694.28- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Rugger Adj 101-21720-0000 2,541.42- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Spies Adj 101-21720-0000 2,208.62- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Terrell Adj 101-21720-0000 2,634.61- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Tomsche Adj 101-21720-0000 847.14- M

05/18/2023 52324 United Healthcare Wellman Adj 101-21720-0000 1,787.47- M

          Total 101217200000: 64,928.29

06/01/2023 62308 VSP VISION FAMILY Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21722-0000 148.33 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP VISION FAMILY Employee  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21722-0000 42.38 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP VISION SINGLE Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21722-0000 81.24 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP VISION + ONE Employee  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 101-21722-0000 97.84 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP Bruder June COBRA 101-21722-0000 6.77 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP Rugger June COBRA 101-21722-0000 12.23 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP S. Spies June COBRA 101-21722-0000 6.77 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP Schult June COBRA 101-21722-0000 12.23 M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP Herschman Adj 101-21722-0000 13.54- M

06/01/2023 62308 VSP L Spies Adj 101-21722-0000 36.69- M

          Total 101217220000: 357.56

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Family  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21724-0000 351.00 M

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Family  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21724-0000 351.00 M

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Family  Pay Period: 4/30/2023 101-21724-0000 3,159.00 M

05/18/2023 52325 Family Medical Care Plan FMCP Family  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 101-21724-0000 3,159.00 M

          Total 101217240000: 7,020.00

06/02/2023 159286 Amy Danielson Park Reservation Refund 101-34785-0000 37.50

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     4

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 101347850000: 37.50

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply DVD's for council meeting 101-41110-2000 36.80

          Total 101411102000: 36.80

06/02/2023 20230400 Discover Waseca Tourism April Lodging Tax 101-41110-4440 1,587.99

          Total 101411104440: 1,587.99

06/02/2023 20230400 Discover Waseca Tourism City Contribution 101-41110-4455 1,500.00

06/02/2023 20230400 Discover Waseca Tourism Fireworks Funding 101-41110-4455 1,500.00

06/02/2023 20230400 Discover Waseca Tourism Clean Up Funding 101-41110-4455 2,000.00

06/02/2023 159328 Waseca Area Neighborhood Service Cen 2023 Funding 101-41110-4455 2,850.00

06/02/2023 20230429 Waseca Area Senior Citizens Center City Contribution 101-41110-4455 1,125.00

06/02/2023 20230430 Waseca Art Center 1st Half City Contribution 101-41110-4455 1,500.00

06/02/2023 159330 Waseca County Agricultural Society City Contribution 101-41110-4455 1,000.00

06/02/2023 159331 Waseca County Historical Society 1st Half City Contribution 101-41110-4455 2,250.00

06/02/2023 20230432 Waseca-LeSueur Regional Library 1st Half Funding 101-41110-4455 600.00

          Total 101411104455: 14,325.00

06/02/2023 20230424 SMART Transit First Half Funding 101-41110-4730 10,200.00

          Total 101411104730: 10,200.00

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply White board and bar 101-41320-2000 107.82

          Total 101413202000: 107.82

06/02/2023 159313 Shred-it USA LLC Monthly Service 101-41320-3100 20.95

          Total 101413203100: 20.95

06/02/2023 20230408 Hall, Julia Mileage Reimbursement 101-41320-3300 186.02

          Total 101413203300: 186.02

06/02/2023 20230389 APG Media of So MN LLC Newspaper 101-41320-4330 76.75

          Total 101413204330: 76.75

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company Pop for Vending Machine 101-41320-4945 112.54

          Total 101413204945: 112.54

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-41500-1340 58.86

          Total 101415001340: 58.86

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office supplies-breakroom 101-41500-2000 49.46

          Total 101415002000: 49.46

06/02/2023 159333 Waseca County Treasurer Legal Services Contract payment 101-41600-3000 5,370.33

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     5

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 101416003000: 5,370.33

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintenance Agreement 101-41920-3100 6,603.52

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintanance Agreement 101-41920-3100 2,170.00

          Total 101419203100: 8,773.52

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office supplies-Central 101-41940-2000 .94

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Thermal paper-city hall 101-41940-2000 123.88

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office supplies-Central 101-41940-2000 39.89

06/02/2023 159310 Quadient Finance SUPPLY PURCHASE 101-41940-2000 309.70

          Total 101419402000: 474.41

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company General Supplies 101-41940-2170 210.72

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon Spoons 101-41940-2170 55.05

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office Supplies 101-41940-2170 131.36

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office Supplies 101-41940-2170 36.80

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office Supplies - credit 101-41940-2170 52.77-

          Total 101419402170: 381.16

06/02/2023 20230395 Cady Business Technologies Inc Monthly Phone Support Plan 101-41940-3100 262.62

06/02/2023 159289 Cintas Corp Floor mat service  101-41940-3100 58.79

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. HVAC Contract 101-41940-3100 2,545.00

06/02/2023 20230425 Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC City Hall Cleaning 101-41940-3100 475.00

06/02/2023 20230425 Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC City hall Cleaning 101-41940-3100 475.00

06/02/2023 20230425 Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC City Hall Cleaning Services 101-41940-3100 875.00

          Total 101419403100: 4,691.41

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-41940-3800 499.21 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-41940-3800 1,490.38

          Total 101419403800: 1,989.59

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-41950-1340 13.10

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-41950-1340 24.72

          Total 101419501340: 37.82

06/02/2023 159295 Fame Awards Name Plates for Planning Commission Members 101-41950-2170 18.00

          Total 101419502170: 18.00

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-42100-1340 459.14

          Total 101421001340: 459.14

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office Supplies - Police  101-42100-2000 91.22

          Total 101421002000: 91.22

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon phone cover  101-42100-2170 17.98

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     6

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 101421002170: 17.98

06/02/2023 20230426 Streicher's Uniform Allowance-Schroeder 101-42100-2180 129.98

06/02/2023 20230426 Streicher's Uniform - Horn 101-42100-2180 23.98

          Total 101421002180: 153.96

06/02/2023 159308 Northland Business Systems Inc. PD cameras for interview rooms 101-42100-2190 3,495.00

          Total 101421002190: 3,495.00

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. HVAC agreement - police 101-42100-2230 1,837.00

          Total 101421002230: 1,837.00

06/02/2023 159309 Orkin Pest Control Orkin - Police 101-42100-3000 108.99

          Total 101421003000: 108.99

06/02/2023 159289 Cintas Corp Mats - PD 101-42100-3100 8.98

06/02/2023 159289 Cintas Corp Mats and bags - PD 101-42100-3100 48.98

06/02/2023 20230399 Computer Information Systems inc CIS renewal 101-42100-3100 1,000.00

06/02/2023 159313 Shred-it USA LLC Monthly Service 101-42100-3100 20.94

06/02/2023 159325 Vault Health Drug Screen 101-42100-3100 60.10

          Total 101421003100: 1,139.00

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 101-42100-3200 1,058.86

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 101-42100-3200 41.11

          Total 101421003200: 1,099.97

06/02/2023 20230409 Hartle, Courtney Meal while at training-MAWP Alexandria 101-42100-3300 22.23

          Total 101421003300: 22.23

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-42100-3800 429.21 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-42100-3800 629.13

          Total 101421003800: 1,058.34

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-42200-1340 50.41

          Total 101422001340: 50.41

06/02/2023 20230396 Central Fire Protection Inc. Training 101-42200-2160 41.00

          Total 101422002160: 41.00

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon General Supplies 101-42200-2170 14.98

          Total 101422002170: 14.98

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. HVAC agreement - fire 101-42200-2230 1,837.00

06/02/2023 159311 Rick's Major Appliance Repair Dishwaser and install 101-42200-2230 953.59

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     7

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 101422002230: 2,790.59

06/02/2023 159285 American Test Center Inc. Annual Safety Inspection 101-42200-3100 575.00

06/02/2023 159289 Cintas Corp Mats - FD 101-42200-3100 8.99

06/02/2023 159289 Cintas Corp Mats - FD 101-42200-3100 8.99

06/02/2023 159304 Kirvida Fire Inc. 521 Pump Test 101-42200-3100 537.72

06/02/2023 159304 Kirvida Fire Inc. 525 Pump Test 101-42200-3100 550.92

06/02/2023 159304 Kirvida Fire Inc. PUMP TESTING 523 101-42200-3100 550.92

          Total 101422003100: 2,232.54

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 101-42200-3200 46.11

          Total 101422003200: 46.11

06/02/2023 159306 MN State Fire Department Association Annual Conference 101-42200-3300 1,075.00

          Total 101422003300: 1,075.00

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-42200-3800 429.21 M

06/02/2023 62316 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Service 101-42200-3800 70.85 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-42200-3800 629.13

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-42200-3800 45.17

          Total 101422003800: 1,174.36

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-42400-1340 24.05

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-42400-1340 6.81

          Total 101424001340: 30.86

06/02/2023 20230397 City Building Inspection Services LLC building inpsections 101-42400-3000 12,988.58

          Total 101424003000: 12,988.58

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 101-42400-3200 82.22

          Total 101424003200: 82.22

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43000-1340 7.02

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43000-1340 99.21

          Total 101430001340: 106.23

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Verizon Data Bill 101-43000-3200 80.02

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 101-43000-3200 41.11

          Total 101430003200: 121.13

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43100-1340 74.15

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43100-1340 3.31

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43100-1340 3.88

          Total 101431001340: 81.34

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     8

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

06/02/2023 20230407 H & J Fuel Inc Fuel 101-43100-2120 1,512.56

06/02/2023 20230407 H & J Fuel Inc fuel 101-43100-2120 3,059.10

          Total 101431002120: 4,571.66

06/02/2023 159293 D & M Construction LLC gravel 101-43100-2170 436.80

06/02/2023 159296 Ferguson Enterprises pipe & fittings 101-43100-2170 89.00

06/02/2023 159301 Janesville Tile Supply Tile Tape 101-43100-2170 133.50

06/02/2023 159318 Sun Up Construction Inc. post 101-43100-2170 120.00

06/02/2023 159332 Waseca County Landfill brush 101-43100-2170 420.00

06/02/2023 20230431 Waseca Sand & Gravel Inc. curb repair 101-43100-2170 221.00

06/02/2023 20230431 Waseca Sand & Gravel Inc. curb repair 101-43100-2170 400.00

06/02/2023 20230431 Waseca Sand & Gravel Inc. curb repair 101-43100-2170 553.00

06/02/2023 20230431 Waseca Sand & Gravel Inc. curb repair 101-43100-2170 565.00

          Total 101431002170: 2,938.30

06/02/2023 159327 W W Blacktopping Inc. Tack oil 101-43100-2171 100.00

06/02/2023 159327 W W Blacktopping Inc. Hot Mix 101-43100-2171 1,309.85

          Total 101431002171: 1,409.85

06/02/2023 159290 Cintas Corporation Uniform Service 101-43100-2180 80.86

06/02/2023 159290 Cintas Corporation Uniform Service 101-43100-2180 80.86

          Total 101431002180: 161.72

06/02/2023 159305 Manthe Garage Doors Door for sign shed 101-43100-2230 3,900.00

          Total 101431002230: 3,900.00

06/02/2023 20230411 IFACS drill bits for handicap chair 101-43100-2400 113.84

          Total 101431002400: 113.84

06/02/2023 159302 Javens Electric Inc. Service Contract 101-43100-3100 1,445.00

          Total 101431003100: 1,445.00

06/02/2023 20230398 Clarke Environmental Mosquito Mgmt Inc mosquito contract 101-43100-3101 7,000.00

          Total 101431003101: 7,000.00

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-43100-3800 604.55 M

06/02/2023 62316 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Service 101-43100-3800 70.84 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-43100-3800 45.17

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-43100-3800 686.98

          Total 101431003800: 1,407.54

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43125-1340 22.08

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43125-1340 3.31

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43125-1340 1.16

          Total 101431251340: 26.55

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     9

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43170-1340 4.73

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43170-1340 .25

          Total 101431701340: 4.98

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-43170-3800 168.85

          Total 101431703800: 168.85

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43220-1340 7.89

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-43220-1340 .41

          Total 101432201340: 8.30

06/02/2023 20230412 Independent School District #829 City Contribution Comm Ed Rec 101-45100-3100 8,333.33

          Total 101451003100: 8,333.33

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-45130-1340 13.04

          Total 101451301340: 13.04

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon Office Organizer 101-45130-2000 27.98

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Laminating sleeves-Water park 101-45130-2000 19.32

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office supplies-waterpark 101-45130-2000 11.60

          Total 101451302000: 58.90

06/02/2023 20230410 Horizon Commercial Pool Supply WP Chemical  101-45130-2165 455.00

          Total 101451302165: 455.00

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon Special Events-Grant 101-45130-2170 1,023.62

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon New drop safe - WP 101-45130-2170 249.99

06/02/2023 20230388 Amazon Yard Games-Grant 101-45130-2170 64.20

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 101-45130-2170 11.99

06/02/2023 20230405 Fastenal Company waterpark grate bolts 101-45130-2170 9.94

06/02/2023 20230411 IFACS stainless fasteners 101-45130-2170 11.65

          Total 101451302170: 1,371.39

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company Janitorial Supplies 101-45130-2175 803.61

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company inventory Credit 101-45130-2175 186.96-

          Total 101451302175: 616.65

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 101-45130-2210 17.95

06/02/2023 159297 Ferguson Enterprises Inc Shower Valves 101-45130-2210 934.99

          Total 101451302210: 952.94

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company Concession supplies 101-45130-2500 899.85

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company WP Concessions 101-45130-2500 3,200.87

          Total 101451302500: 4,100.72

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     10

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. HVAC Contract 101-45130-3100 1,275.00

06/02/2023 159315 South Central College Safety Training 101-45130-3100 1,540.00

06/02/2023 159329 Waseca Community Education Lifeguard Cert Pool Fee 101-45130-3100 558.01

          Total 101451303100: 3,373.01

06/02/2023 159284 American Red Cross-Training Services Lifeguard Certification 101-45130-3300 84.00

          Total 101451303300: 84.00

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-45130-3800 296.55 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-45130-3800 551.35

          Total 101451303800: 847.90

06/02/2023 20230405 Fastenal Company Bolts 101-45130-4000 5.92

06/02/2023 159321 The Lifeguard Store Inc Tubes and Aerobic Equipment 101-45130-4000 932.40

06/02/2023 20230431 Waseca Sand & Gravel Inc. ADA lift concrete 101-45130-4000 480.00

          Total 101451304000: 1,418.32

05/30/2023 159269 LeSueur/Waseca Community Health Boa Public Health Licensing 101-45130-4500 765.00

          Total 101451304500: 765.00

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Office supplies-Tink 101-45180-2170 11.60

          Total 101451802170: 11.60

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 101-45180-2175 11.99

          Total 101451802175: 11.99

06/02/2023 20230387 A. H. Hermel Company TLCF Concessions 101-45180-2500 65.37

          Total 101451802500: 65.37

06/02/2023 20230391 Bachman's Inc. TLCF Plants  101-45180-4000 199.90

06/02/2023 159298 Fessel's Wood Recycling TLCF Landscape Mulch 101-45180-4000 1,140.00

06/02/2023 159307 MPeters Enterprises Inc. TLCF Flag  101-45180-4000 50.00

          Total 101451804000: 1,389.90

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 101-45200-1340 79.76

          Total 101452001340: 79.76

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Toner - Fire 101-45200-2000 76.30

          Total 101452002000: 76.30

06/02/2023 20230391 Bachman's Inc. Library Plants 101-45200-2170 276.85

06/02/2023 159298 Fessel's Wood Recycling Parks Landscape Mulch 101-45200-2170 840.00

05/22/2023 20230373 The Tessman Company Turf Supplies  101-45200-2170 248.00- V

06/02/2023 20230427 The Tessman Company Turf Supplies  101-45200-2170 248.00

05/22/2023 20230373 The Tessman Company Turf Supplies  101-45200-2170 161.00- V

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     11

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

06/02/2023 20230427 The Tessman Company Turf Supplies  101-45200-2170 161.00

          Total 101452002170: 1,116.85

06/02/2023 20230433 Will, Joel Work Boots - Will 101-45200-2190 160.00

          Total 101452002190: 160.00

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 101-45200-2230 34.73

          Total 101452002230: 34.73

06/02/2023 159288 Born Well Drilling Inc. MWP Well Test 101-45200-3100 150.00

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. Javens Service Contract 101-45200-3100 855.00

06/02/2023 159312 Sam Bartelt Tree Service & Snow Remov TREE STUMP GRINDING 101-45200-3100 1,361.25

06/02/2023 159325 Vault Health Drug Screen 101-45200-3100 575.70

06/02/2023 159332 Waseca County Landfill Landfill Fees - Brush 101-45200-3100 210.00

06/02/2023 159332 Waseca County Landfill Landfill Fees - Brush 101-45200-3100 90.00

          Total 101452003100: 3,241.95

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-45200-3800 228.55 M

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-45200-3800 32.29 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-45200-3800 417.25

          Total 101452003800: 678.09

06/02/2023 20230423 Rent 'N' Save Portable Services April Parks - Portable Toilets 101-45200-4100 435.25

          Total 101452004100: 435.25

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. HVAC Contract 101-45500-3100 1,930.00

06/02/2023 20230425 Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC Library Cleaning 101-45500-3100 250.00

06/02/2023 20230425 Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC Library Cleaning 101-45500-3100 250.00

06/02/2023 20230425 Stoltz Cleaning Services LLC Library Cleaning Services 101-45500-3100 250.00

          Total 101455003100: 2,680.00

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 101-45500-3800 470.68 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 101-45500-3800 862.20

          Total 101455003800: 1,332.88

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. Repair Plumbing & valve 101-45500-4000 947.22

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. Library Boiler 101-45500-4000 440.00

06/02/2023 159303 Jetter Clean Inc. Drain cleaning 101-45500-4000 410.00

          Total 101455004000: 1,797.22

05/31/2023 52316 MN UI Fund Unemployment Benefits 1st Qtr 2010 101-49220-1410 590.00 M

          Total 101492201410: 590.00

          Total General Fund: 422,769.33

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     12

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

Waseca Rehab Program 2015

05/12/2023 159267 Southwest MN Housing Partnership CDAP-20-0053-0-Draw #2 212-46500-3000 5,958.15

          Total 212465003000: 5,958.15

          Total Waseca Rehab Program 2015: 5,958.15

Airport

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. Switch and Access points for Airport 230-49810-2170 3,513.00

          Total 230498102170: 3,513.00

06/02/2023 20230417 Langer, Brent Contract Payment 230-49810-3100 3,800.00

          Total 230498103100: 3,800.00

06/02/2023 62317 CenturyLink Airport Phone and Internet 230-49810-3200 126.10 M

          Total 230498103200: 126.10

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 230-49810-3800 62.54 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 230-49810-3800 93.95

06/02/2023 62314 Xcel Energy Airport Electric 230-49810-3800 83.19 M

06/02/2023 62312 Xcel Energy Airport Electric 230-49810-3800 207.87 M

          Total 230498103800: 447.55

          Total Airport: 7,886.65

Economic Development-General f

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 261-46700-1340 11.16

          Total 261467001340: 11.16

06/02/2023 159320 The Brookshire Co Annual membership fee 261-46700-4330 2,500.00

          Total 261467004330: 2,500.00

          Total Economic Development-General f: 2,511.16

Capital Improvement

06/02/2023 20230420 Met-Con Construction Inc CLear Lake Park Project 430-43010-5435 28,115.25

          Total 430430105435: 28,115.25

06/02/2023 159287 Bolton & Menk Inc. 8th Ave NE Design Engineering 430-43010-5560 3,719.00

          Total 430430105560: 3,719.00

          Total Capital Improvement: 31,834.25

Water

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc Demurrage 601-49401-2170 170.00

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc Conagra Well Chemicals 601-49401-2170 2,922.44

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc City Wells Chemicals 601-49401-2170 7,833.42

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     13

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 601494012170: 10,925.86

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 601-49401-3800 126.61 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 601-49401-3800 9,158.75

06/02/2023 62313 Xcel Energy April Usage 601-49401-3800 226.16 M

          Total 601494013800: 9,511.52

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service SOCIAL SECURITY  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 601-49430-0000 378.45 M

05/18/2023 52321 ACH Internal Revenue Service MEDICARE  Pay Period: 5/14/2023 601-49430-0000 88.50 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service SOCIAL SECURITY  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 601-49430-0000 427.92 M

06/01/2023 62305 ACH Internal Revenue Service MEDICARE  Pay Period: 5/28/2023 601-49430-0000 100.07 M

          Total 601494300000: 994.94

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49430-1340 1.58

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49430-1340 .08

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49430-1340 10.06

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49430-1340 20.76

          Total 601494301340: 32.48

06/02/2023 20230428 USA Blue Book Lab Supplies 601-49430-2170 216.52

          Total 601494302170: 216.52

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 601-49430-2180 109.99

          Total 601494302180: 109.99

06/02/2023 159296 Ferguson Enterprises Water salesman valves 601-49430-2210 1,147.13

          Total 601494302210: 1,147.13

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 601-49430-3200 40.01

          Total 601494303200: 40.01

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49585-1340 16.12

          Total 601495851340: 16.12

06/02/2023 159323 U.S. Postal Service Postage - June utility bills 601-49585-3200 494.40

          Total 601495853200: 494.40

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49586-1340 2.89

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49586-1340 14.58

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 601-49586-1340 7.02

          Total 601495861340: 24.49

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintenance Agreement 601-49586-4950 943.36

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintanance Agreement 601-49586-4950 310.00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     14

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 601495864950: 1,253.36

06/02/2023 20230418 Lenz Lawn Care & Landscaping Inc. Backflow Testing 2nd St & 2nd Ave 601-49593-5300 115.00

          Total 601495935300: 115.00

          Total Water: 24,881.82

Sanitary Sewer

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49470-1340 28.39

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49470-1340 3.31

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49470-1340 1.49

          Total 602494701340: 33.19

06/02/2023 159294 Environmental Products & Access LLC 8" pump clamps & flanges 602-49470-2170 318.92

          Total 602494702170: 318.92

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. Service contract 602-49470-3100 627.00

          Total 602494703100: 627.00

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49470-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49470-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49470-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49470-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49470-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49470-3200 40.01

          Total 602494703200: 240.06

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 602-49470-3800 22.41 M

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 602-49470-3800 316.02 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 602-49470-3800 1,400.50

          Total 602494703800: 1,738.93

06/02/2023 20230404 ESS Brothers & Sons Inc castings 602-49470-4000 2,316.60

          Total 602494704000: 2,316.60

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 602-49470-4020 45.98

          Total 602494704020: 45.98

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49480-1340 3.15

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49480-1340 .17

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49480-1340 49.14

          Total 602494801340: 52.46

06/02/2023 20230390 Applied Specialties Inc Polymer 602-49480-2170 6,406.40

06/02/2023 20230403 Environmental Resource Associates Permit Testing Supplies 602-49480-2170 260.49

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc Chlorine & Sulfur 602-49480-2170 3,458.60

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     15

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc Demurrage 602-49480-2170 20.00

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc Demurrage 602-49480-2170 30.00

06/02/2023 159300 Hawkins Inc Alum 602-49480-2170 6,135.46

06/02/2023 20230428 USA Blue Book Lab Supplies 602-49480-2170 466.22

          Total 602494802170: 16,777.17

06/02/2023 159319 Tech Sales Co. Sampling supplies 602-49480-2210 1,674.00

06/02/2023 159322 Thermal Process Systems TPS ORP Probe 602-49480-2210 1,202.99

          Total 602494802210: 2,876.99

06/02/2023 159289 Cintas Corp Floor mat service  602-49480-3100 9.60

06/02/2023 20230415 Javens Mechanical Contracting Co. Service Contract 602-49480-3100 3,433.00

06/02/2023 20230419 M & R Electric Inc. Building Repairs 602-49480-3100 111.51

06/02/2023 20230419 M & R Electric Inc. electric controls 602-49480-3100 200.74

06/02/2023 20230421 North Shore Analytical Inc. industrial sampling 602-49480-3100 285.00

06/02/2023 20230421 North Shore Analytical Inc. Permit Testing Mercury 602-49480-3100 410.00

06/02/2023 159316 Spee-Dee Delivery Service Inc. Hg sampling 602-49480-3100 18.91

          Total 602494803100: 4,468.76

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 602-49480-3200 41.11

          Total 602494803200: 41.11

06/02/2023 62315 Centerpoint Energy Monthly Billing 602-49480-3800 1,551.14 M

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 602-49480-3800 468.79

06/02/2023 159317 SSI Crestmark MN Holding LLC Solar Power  602-49480-3800 15,907.87

06/02/2023 159324 USS MN V MT LLC Solar Power 602-49480-3800 3,006.51

          Total 602494803800: 20,934.31

06/02/2023 159299 Hach Company Hach controls 602-49480-4000 6,287.40

          Total 602494804000: 6,287.40

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49585-1340 16.12

          Total 602495851340: 16.12

06/02/2023 159323 U.S. Postal Service Postage - June utility bills 602-49585-3200 494.39

          Total 602495853200: 494.39

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49586-1340 2.89

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 602-49586-1340 14.58

          Total 602495861340: 17.47

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintenance Agreement 602-49586-4950 943.36

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintanance Agreement 602-49586-4950 310.00

          Total 602495864950: 1,253.36

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     16

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total Sanitary Sewer: 58,540.22

Electric Utility

05/31/2023 52327 MN Sales and Use Tax Payable Sales and Use Tax 604-20210-0000 34,044.42 M

05/31/2023 52327 MN Sales and Use Tax Payable Sales and Use Tax 604-20210-0000 1,264.85 M

          Total 604202100000: 35,309.27

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49570-1340 3.02

          Total 604495701340: 3.02

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 604-49570-3800 72.38

          Total 604495703800: 72.38

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49571-1340 71.46

          Total 604495711340: 71.46

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 604-49571-2170 74.29

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Ink-Electric 604-49571-2170 109.24

          Total 604495712170: 183.53

06/02/2023 20230394 Border States Electric Supply meter disconnect blanks 604-49571-2215 808.95

          Total 604495712215: 808.95

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 604-49571-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 604-49571-3200 40.01

06/02/2023 159326 Verizon Wireless Monthly Billing 604-49571-3200 40.01

          Total 604495713200: 120.03

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49572-1340 7.05

          Total 604495721340: 7.05

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49573-1340 13.09

          Total 604495731340: 13.09

06/02/2023 20230401 Ditch Witch of Minnesota Boring Supplies 604-49573-2170 110.26

          Total 604495732170: 110.26

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49574-1340 4.03

          Total 604495741340: 4.03

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 604-49574-3800 204.15

          Total 604495743800: 204.15

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 604-49575-3800 654.43

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     17

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 604495753800: 654.43

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49584-1340 2.01

          Total 604495841340: 2.01

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49585-1340 29.03

          Total 604495851340: 29.03

06/02/2023 20230413 Innovative Office Supply Toner-Sonnenberg 604-49585-2000 99.67

          Total 604495852000: 99.67

06/02/2023 159323 U.S. Postal Service Postage - June utility bills 604-49585-3200 494.39

          Total 604495853200: 494.39

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49586-1340 3.13

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 604-49586-1340 15.02

          Total 604495861340: 18.15

06/02/2023 20230392 Barr Engineering Company Engineering 604-49586-3000 1,756.94

          Total 604495863000: 1,756.94

06/02/2023 20230406 Gaernst and Associates  INC residential energy audit program 604-49586-3100 188.50

06/02/2023 159313 Shred-it USA LLC Monthly Service 604-49586-3100 20.94

          Total 604495863100: 209.44

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintenance Agreement 604-49586-4950 943.36

06/02/2023 20230422 Pantheon Computer Systems Inc. 2023 Maintanance Agreement 604-49586-4950 310.00

          Total 604495864950: 1,253.36

06/02/2023 20230394 Border States Electric Supply conversion supplies 604-49593-5300 513.33

06/02/2023 20230394 Border States Electric Supply conversion supplies 604-49593-5300 17,285.80

06/02/2023 20230416 JT Services of MN conversion supplies 604-49593-5300 9,182.70

          Total 604495935300: 26,981.83

          Total Electric Utility: 68,406.47

Storm Water Utility

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 651-43140-1340 2.41

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 651-43140-1340 15.77

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 651-43140-1340 .83

          Total 651431401340: 19.01

06/02/2023 159291 City of Waseca May Utilities 651-43140-3800 150.97

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     18

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Check Check Description Invoice Check

Issue Date Number Payee GL Account Amount

          Total 651431403800: 150.97

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 651-49585-1340 3.22

          Total 651495851340: 3.22

06/02/2023 20230414 James Brothers Construction Inc. Rock for 6th St SW drain tile 651-49593-5300 936.00

06/02/2023 159327 W W Blacktopping Inc. Asphalt for 6th St SW drain tile 651-49593-5300 3,504.60

06/02/2023 159327 W W Blacktopping Inc. Asphalt for 6th St SW drain tile 651-49593-5300 3,166.68

06/02/2023 20230431 Waseca Sand & Gravel Inc. Materials for 6th St SW drain tile 651-49593-5300 400.00

          Total 651495935300: 8,007.28

          Total Storm Water Utility: 8,180.48

Central Garage Services

06/01/2023 159282 Madison National Life Insurance Co Inc June 2023 LTD 701-43180-1340 56.19

          Total 701431801340: 56.19

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 701-43180-2170 54.88

06/02/2023 159314 South Central College Eric D.O.T. insp. recert. 701-43180-2170 110.00

          Total 701431802170: 164.88

06/02/2023 159285 American Test Center Inc. annual equipment inspections 701-43180-2210 1,230.00

06/02/2023 20230401 Ditch Witch of Minnesota Valve part 701-43180-2210 146.95

06/02/2023 20230401 Ditch Witch of Minnesota Returned Valve part 701-43180-2210 146.95-

          Total 701431802210: 1,230.00

06/02/2023 20230393 Bomgaars Supply Parts & Supplies 701-43180-2400 35.04

          Total 701431802400: 35.04

          Total Central Garage Services: 1,486.11

Equipment Replacement Fund

06/02/2023 20230402 Emergency Automotive Technologies Inc. new squad expense 705-49920-5400 827.89

          Total 705499205400: 827.89

06/02/2023 159292 Clark Equipment Parks Tree Grappler 705-49970-5400 5,254.66

          Total 705499705400: 5,254.66

          Total Equipment Replacement Fund: 6,082.55

          Grand Totals:  638,537.19

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF WASECA Check Register - Council Page:     19

Check Issue Dates: 5/12/2023 - 6/2/2023 Jun 02, 2023  08:36AM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  GL detail

[Report].Amount = {<>} 0

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



6C























6D









6E





Title: CONSUMPTION AND DISPLAY LIQUOR LICENSE 

Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 6F 
Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Consumption and Display 

Application 

Originating 

Department: 

Administration Presented By: Consent Agenda 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Motion to approve Consumption and Display liquor license as 

presented. 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 

2030 goals? 

Creating good governance. 

BACKGROUND:   Attached is the application for a new Consumption and Display Liquor License for the 

remainder of 2023.  The applicant is C and A Design, MN LLC. Located at 208 State Street North. There will 

be no alcohol sales on premises, Consumption and Display License will allow patrons to provide their own 

alcohol while attending events at C and A Design, MN LLC 

The applicant was required to submit a completed application, appropriate prorated fee, release for a 

background check, and a Certificate of Insurance for liability coverage. 

The Police Department has conducted background checks on the applicant. The results of the records check did 

not reveal any criminal convictions, arrest data and/or suspicious activity that would be of interest pertaining to 

the liquor license. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to approve the Consumption and Display License as presented. 

Request for City Council Action 





Title: APPROVAL OF INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS 

LOCAL NO. 70 – PUBLIC WORKS (IUOE-PW) UNION CONTRACT 2023-

2025 AND LETTER OF AGREEMENT(S) (LOA) 

Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

IUOE-Fire Contract 

LOA #1 - 6 

Originating 

Department: 

Administration Presented By: City Manager 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Approve new contract with the International Union of 

Operating Engineers – Public Works (IUOE-PW) and Letter of Agreements (LOA) 

#1-6. 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Good Government 

BACKGROUND: Staff has concluded negotiations with all unions with contracts ending December 31, 2022, 

the City has with its employees. The City Council has already approved the International Brotherhood of 

Electrical Workers (IBEW) contract on December 20, 2022, and the Law Enforcement Labor Services (LELS-

Patrol) contract on January 17, 2023, and International Union of Operating Engineers – Fire (IUOE-Fire) 

contract on April 18, 2023.  

The International Union of Operating Engineers – Public Works (IUOE-PW) has seen fit to ratify the proposed 

terms and conditions for settlement. A summary of what was agreed upon and the new contract is attached. 

BUDGET IMPACT: The agreement incorporates an overall wage increase of 3.0% which has been included in 

the budgets presented to the council in December. As well as the health insurance changes. 

POLICY QUESTION: Does the Council wish to approve the proposed labor contract? 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommend approval of the IUOE-PW contract and LOAs. 

Request for City Council Action 

6G



AGREEMENT 

between 

CITY OF WASECA 

and 

INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING ENGINEERS 
LOCAL NO. 70 

PUBLIC WORKS 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022 
       2023               2025 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT ............................................................................ 4 

ARTICLE 2 – RECOGNITION ..................................................................................................... 4 

ARTICLE 3 – UNION SECURITY ............................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 4 – EMPLOYER AUTHORITY ................................................................................. 5 

ARTICLE 5 – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS/GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ................................... 6 

ARTICLE 6 – DEFINITIONS ....................................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 7 – UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES .......................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 8 – UNION DUTIES .................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 9 – UNION OFFICIALS .............................................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE 10 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE................................................................. 10 

ARTICLE 11 – SENIORITY ...................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE 12 – PROBATION .................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 13 – HOURS ............................................................................................................... 12 

ARTICLE 14 – CALL BACK ...................................................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE 15 – WAGES .............................................................................................................. 13 

ARTICLE 16 – OVERTIME ....................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 17 – VACATIONS ..................................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 18 – LEAVES OF ABSENCE ................................................................................. 17 

ARTICLE 19 – HOLIDAYS ........................................................................................................ 18 

ARTICLE 20 – SICK LEAVE ..................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 21 – INSURANCE..................................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE 22 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ............................................................................. 21 

ARTICLE 23 – INJURY LEAVE ............................................................................................... 22 

ARTICLE 24 – MILITARY LEAVE TRAINING .................................................................. 23 

ARTICLE 25 – JURY SERVICE ................................................................................................ 23 

ARTICLE 26 – SEVERANCE PAY .......................................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE 27 – TRAINING ........................................................................................................ 24 

ARTICLE 28 – EQUIPMENT ................................................................................................... 24 



3 

ARTICLE 29 – WAIVERS .......................................................................................................... 25

ARTICLE 30 – AFFIRMATIVE ACTION .............................................................................. 26

ARTICLE 31 – SAVINGS CLAUSE ......................................................................................... 26

ARTICLE 32 – TERMINATION .............................................................................................. 26

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #1 ................................................................................................ 28

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #2 ................................................................................................ 30

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #3 ................................................................................................ 31

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #4 ................................................................................................ 33 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #5……………………………………………………………………. 36 
LETTER OF AGREEMENT #6……………………………………………………………………. 37 



4 
 

ARTICLE 1 – PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into as of the 1st day of January, 2020, 
by and between the CITY OF WASECA, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter 
referred to as the City) and the INTERNATIONAL UNION OF OPERATING 
ENGINEERS, LOCAL NO. 70 (hereinafter referred to as the Union) as exclusive 
bargaining agent for the employees in the bargaining unit set forth in Article 1 
below. 
 
WHEREAS, Minnesota Legislature has endorsed the practices and procedures 
of collective bargaining as a fair and only way of conducting its relations with 
its employees, and relations of any political subdivision with its employees, 
insofar as such practices and procedures are appropriate to the function of 
obligations of the City to retain the right effectively to operate in a responsible 
and efficient manner and are so consonant with the paramount of the City and 
its citizens; 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intention of this Agreement to set forth the entire 
Agreement of the parties covering the employment conditions not otherwise 
mandated by statute, charter or ordinance, to maintain and increase the 
individual productivity in the quality of services, to prevent interruption of 
work and interference of the efficient operation of the City and to provide an 
orderly and prompt method for handling and processing grievances; 
 
WHEREAS, the parties recognize that this Agreement is not intended to 
modify and of the discretionary authority vested in the City by statutes of the 
State of Minnesota, City Charter, and City Ordinances and City Resolutions. 
  
 

ARTICLE 2 – RECOGNITION  
 
The Employer recognizes the Union as the Exclusive Representative for all 
Water Operators, Wastewater Treatment Operators, Public Works 
Maintenance Workers, Mechanics, and Assistant Mechanics, excluding 
supervisory, confidential and all other employees of the Employer. 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

ARTICLE 3 – UNION SECURITY  
 
In recognition of the Union as the exclusive representative the Employer shall: 
 
Section 1.  Deduct from each payroll period an amount sufficient to provide 
the payment of dues established by the Union from the wages of all employees 
authorizing in writing such deduction; and 
 
Section 2.  Remit such deduction to the appropriate designated officer of the Union. 
 
Section 3.  The Union may designate two (2) employees from the bargaining 
unit to act as steward and shall inform the Employer in writing of such choice. 
 
Section 4.  The exclusive representative hereby warrants and covenants that it 
will defend, indemnify, and save the City of Waseca harmless from any and all 
actions, duties, claims, damages, judgments and executions or other forms of 
liability, liquidated or unliquidated, which any person may have or claim to 
have, now or in the future, arising out of or by reason of the deduction of the fair 
share fee specified by the Exclusive Representative as provided herein. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4 – EMPLOYER AUTHORITY  
 
Section 1.  The Employer retains the full and unrestricted right to operate and 
manage all manpower, facilities, and equipment; to establish functions and 
programs; to set and amend budgets; to determine the utilization of 
technology; to establish and modify the organizational structure; to select, 
direct and determine the number of personnel to establish work schedules; 
and to perform any inherent managerial function not specifically limited by 
this Agreement. 
 
Section 2.  Any term and condition of employment not specifically established 
or modified by this Agreement shall remain solely within the discretion of the 
Employer to modify, establish, or eliminate. 
 
 

 
 
 



6 

ARTICLE 5 – EMPLOYEE RIGHTS/GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Section 1.  A grievance shall be defined as a dispute of disagreement raised by 
an employee against the City involving the interpretation or application of the 
specific express provisions of this Agreement.  It is specifically understood 
that any matters covered by Minnesota statutory provisions, City Charter 
provisions, City Ordinances, and City Resolutions shall not be considered 
grievances and subject to the grievance hereto set forth.  Grievances, as herein 
defined, shall be processed in the following manner: 

Section 2.  Processing of a Grievance.  It is recognized and accepted by the Union 
and the Employer that the processing of grievances as hereinafter provided is 
limited by the job duties and responsibilities of the Employees and shall 
therefore be accomplished during normal working hours only when consistent 
with such Employee duties and responsibilities. The aggrieved Employee and the 
Union Representative shall be allowed a reasonable amount of time without loss 
in pay when a grievance is investigated and presented to the Employer during 
normal working hours provided the Employee and the Union Representative 
have notified and received the approval of the designated supervisor who has 
determined that such absence is reasonable and would not be detrimental to the 
work programs of the Employer. 

Section 3.  Procedure.  Grievances, as defined by Article 5, Section 1, shall be 
resolved in conformance with the following procedure: 

Step 1.  An Employee claiming a violation concerning the interpretation 
or application of this Agreement shall, within twenty-one (21) calendar 
days after such alleged violation has occurred, present such grievance in 
writing to the Employee’s supervisor as designated by the Employer.  
The Employer-designated representative will discuss and give an 
answer to such Step 1 grievance within ten (10) calendar days after 
receipt.  A grievance not resolved in Step 1 and appealed to Step 2 shall 
be placed in writing setting forth the nature of the grievance, the facts 
on which it is based, the provision or provisions of the Agreement 
allegedly violated, and the remedy requested and shall be appealed to 
Step 2 within ten (10) calendar days after the Employer -designated 
representative’s final answer in Step 1. Any grievance not appealed in 
writing to Step 2 by the Union within ten (10) calendar days shall be 
considered waived. 



7 

Step 2.  If appealed, the written grievance shall be presented by the 
Union and discussed with the Employer-designated Step 2 
representative.  The Employer-designated representative shall give the 
Union the Employer’s Step 2 answer in writing within ten (10) calendar 
days after receipt of such Step 2 grievance. A grievance not resolved in 
Step 2 may be appealed to Step 3 within ten (10) calendar days 
following the Employer-designated representative’s final Step 2 answer. 
Any grievance not appealed in writing to Step 3 by the Union within ten 
(10) calendar days shall be considered waived. 

Step 3.  If the grievance is not resolved in Step 2, the parties, by mutual 
agreement, may submit the matter to mediation with the State of 
Minnesota, Bureau of Mediation Services.  Submitting the grievance to 
mediation preserves the tolls and timelines for Step 4 of the grievance 
procedure through the conclusion of mediation. 

Step 4.  A grievance unresolved in Step 3 and appealed in Step 4 shall be 
submitted to arbitration. The Employer and the Union representative 
shall endeavor to select a mutually acceptable arbitrator to hear and 
decide the grievance. If the parties cannot agree on an arbitrator, the 
selection of an arbitrator shall be made in accordance with the Rules 
established by the Bureau of Mediation Services. 

Section 4.  Arbitrator’s Authority.  

A. The arbitrator shall have no right to amend, modify, nullify, ignore, 
add to, or subtract from the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. The arbitrator shall consider and decide only the 
specific issue(s) submitted in writing by the Employer and the 
Union, and shall have no authority to make a decision on any other 
issue not so submitted. 

B. The arbitrator shall be without power to make decisions contrary 
to, or inconsistent with, or modifying or varying in any way the 
application of laws, rules, or regulations having the force and effect 
of law. The arbitrator’s decision shall be submitted in writing 
within thirty (30) days following the close of the hearing or the 
submission of briefs by the parties, whichever be later, unless the 
parties agree to an extension.  The decision shall be binding on both 



8 

the Employer and the Union and shall be based solely on the 
arbitrator’s interpretation or application of the express terms of 
this Agreement and to the facts of the grievance presented. 

C. The fees and expenses for the arbitrator’s services and proceedings 
shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Union provided that 
each party shall be responsible for compensating its own 
representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim 
record of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, 
providing it pays for the record. If both parties desire a verbatim 
record of the proceedings the cost shall be shared equally. 

Section 5.  Waiver.  If a grievance is not presented within the time limits set 
forth above, it shall be considered “waived”.  If a grievance is not appealed to 
the next step within the specified time limit or any agreed extension thereof, it 
shall be considered settled on the basis of the Employer’s last answer. If the 
Employer does not answer a grievance or an appeal thereof within the 
specified time limits, the Union may elect to treat the grievance as denied at 
that step and immediately appeal the grievance to the next step. The time limit 
in each step may be extended by mutual agreement of the Employer and the 
Union. 

ARTICLE 6 – DEFINITIONS 

UNION: International Union of Operating Engineers Local No. 70 

EMPLOYER: The City of Waseca 

UNION A member of the International Union of Operating 
MEMBER: Engineers, Local No. 70 

EMPLOYEE:  A member of the exclusively recognized bargaining unit. 

BASE PAY The employee’s hourly pay rate exclusive of longevity or 
RATE: any other special allowance. 

SENIORITY:  Length of continuous service with the Employer. 



9 

ARTICLE 7 – UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES 

The City and the Union recognize that the Minnesota Public Employees Labor 
Relations Act (PELRA) in 179.68 list specific activities that the City and the 
Union may not engage in.  The City and the Union in the interest of serving the 
public agree not to encourage or participate in any activities which are listed 
in 179.68 as Unfair Labor Practices. 

ARTICLE 8 – UNION DUTIES 

Neither the Union, its officers or agents, nor any of the employees covered by 
this Agreement, can engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any 
strikes, slow-downs, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, willful absence of 
one’s position, the stoppage of work or the abstinence in whole or in part of 
the full, faithful and proper performance and duties of employment.  In the 
event that any employee violates this Article, the Union shall immediately 
notify any such employee in writing to cease and desist from such action and 
shall instruct them to immediately return to their normal duties.  Any or all 
employees who violate any of the provisions of this Article may be discharged 
or otherwise disciplined.  The City agrees that there shall be no lockouts of the 
employees. 

ARTICLE 9 – UNION OFFICIALS 

Section 1.  There shall be no more than one Union Steward for the Public 
Works Maintenance Department, and no more than one Union Steward for the 
Wastewater Department.  The Steward and other Union Officials shall not 
leave their work stations without prior permission of their supervisor and 
then only for such activities as are specifically provided for in this Agreement.  
They shall notify their supervisor upon return to their work stations.  The 
Union shall furnish the City with a complete and current list of its Union 
official and Stewards who will represent the Union in all matters of this 
Agreement. 

Section 2.  Representatives of the Union, previously accredited to the City in 
writing by the Union, shall be permitted to come on the premises of the City 
for the purposes of investigating or discussing grievances if they have first 
obtained permission from the City Manager or his/her designated 



10 

representative, provided that the Union representative does not interfere with 
the work of the employees. 

Section 3.  The Union agrees that there shall be no solicitation for 
membership, signing up of members, collection of initiation fees, dues, fines or 
assessments, meetings or any other activities on City time. 

Section 4.  New Hire – Union Visitation:  The Union will be allowed to meet 
with newly hired employee(s) for up to one hour.  This will take place on the 
clock, either within the first two (2) weeks of employment or at a date 
mutually agreed to between the Union and Employer. 

ARTICLE 10 – DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 

Section 1.  Disciplinary action may be imposed upon an employee only for just 
cause.  Initial reprimand for minor infractions, irregularities or deficiencies 
shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other 
employees or the public, and any disciplinary action imposed upon an 
employee may be processed through the grievance procedure.  The normal 
disciplinary procedure shall be as follows: 

1. Oral reprimand.
2. Written reprimand (copy to the Union and City HR Technician)
3. Suspension or demotion (copy to the Union and City HR

Technician)
4. Discharge (copy to the Union and City HR Technician)

When any disciplinary action more severe than an oral reprimand is intended, 
the Employer shall, before or at the time of such action is taken, notify the 
employee in writing of the specific reason(s) for such action. 

Section 2.  At his or her request, an employee shall have the opportunity to 
have a Union representative present during an investigation that may result in 
disciplinary action against the employee.  The Union shall have the right to 
take up a suspension and/or discharge or demotion as a grievance at the 
second step of the grievance procedure and the matter shall be handled in 
accordance with the grievance procedure through the arbitration step if 
deemed necessary. 



11 

Section 3.  The Employer shall not discharge any employee without just cause.  
If the Employer feels there is just cause for discharge the employee shall be 
suspended for ten (10) working days and the employee will be notified in 
writing, that he/she is subject to discharge and shall be furnished with the 
reason(s) therefore.   

Section 4.  An oral reprimand shall not become part of an employee's 
personnel record.  Each employee shall be furnished with a copy of all 
evaluative and disciplinary entries into his/her personnel office record and 
shall be entitled to have his/her written response included therein.  All 
disciplinary entries in the personnel office record shall state the corrective 
action expected of the employee. 

The contents of an employee's personnel office record shall be disclosed to 
him/her by the Finance Director upon request and to the employee's Union 
representative upon the written request of the employee. 

ARTICLE 11 – SENIORITY 

Section 1.  Seniority shall be defined as the length of continuous service from 
most recent date of hire (including the probationary period).  Seniority 
preference shall be granted to an employee in connection with layoff, recall, 
promotion or transfer, in recognition of his/her length of continuous service in a 
classification covered by this Agreement.  A seniority roster will be posted in an 
appropriate location and maintained by the Employer.  Within each department, 
seniority will be the determining criterion for transfer, promotion and layoffs 
when the job relevant qualifications and performance factors are equal. 

Section 2.  Employees on layoff shall be recalled in reverse order of layoff.  
Laid off employees shall have recall rights for twelve (12) months after layoff.  
A laid off employee may extend their recall right an additional one (1) year by 
serving written request via certified mail to the Employer within the initial 
twelve-month period of layoff.  Recalled employees must return to work 
within five (5) work days after recall notification by certified mail to the last 
known address the employee furnished to the Employer. 



12 

Section 3.  In the event that an employee is laid off from a position of higher 
rank as determined by level of pay, he/she may exercise his/her seniority 
privilege to assume a lower grade position for which he/she is qualified and is 
more senior than the employee being displaced within the department.  This 
provision may not be exercised to assume a position outside the employee's 
department or jurisdiction of this Agreement. 

Section 4.  In the event of a job opening, the position shall be posted on the 
employee’s bulletin board for a period of five (5) working days.  

ARTICLE 12 – PROBATION 

Section 1.  An employee under the provisions of this Agreement shall serve a 
probationary period of the first six (6) months of continuous service, during 
which time the Employer shall have the unqualified right to discharge or 
otherwise discipline such employee, with or without cause.  Such discharge 
will not be subject to the Grievance procedure in this Agreement.   
Probationary employees shall have the right to bring a grievance on any other 
provision of the contract alleged to have been violated.   

Section 2.  Current employees who progress to a different classification shall 
serve a ninety (90) day probationary period, during which time the employee 
may elect to return to his/her former position.  Likewise, the Employer, 
during the same period may return such employee to his/her former position 
if job performance is not to standard. 

Section 3.  The probationary periods in Sections 1 and 2 of this Article, may be 
extended by mutual agreement of the Employer, the employee and the Union. 

ARTICLE 13 – HOURS 

Section 1.  This Article is intended only to define the normal hours of the week 
and to provide the basis of calculation of overtime pay. 

Section 2.  The normal work week for all employees except 
Water/Wastewater Treatment Operators shall be five (5) consecutive days 



13 

commencing on Monday and ending on Friday, inclusive for a total of forty 
(40) hours per week. 

Section 3.  The normal work hours for the Water/Wastewater Treatment 
Operator will be eighty (80) hours in each fourteen (14) days. 

ARTICLE 14 – CALL BACK 

An employee called in for work at a time other than his/her normal scheduled 
shift will be paid for a minimum of three (3) hours. 

An employee called in for work on holidays and weekends, will be paid for a 
minimum of four (4) hours worked. 

ARTICLE 15 – WAGES 

Section 1.  The following step plans shall apply: 

Public Works Maintenance Worker; Water/Wastewater Treatment Operator 

Effective January 6, 2020:  December 26, 2022: 
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 
$23.76 $24.75 $25.73 $26.73 $27.72 $28.70 $29.70 
$25.83 $26.91 $27.98 $29.07 $30.14 $31.21 $32.29 

Effective January 4, 2021:  January 8, 2024: 
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 
$24.47 $25.49 $26.51 $27.53 $28.55 $29.57 $30.59 
$26.60 $27.72 $28.82 $29.94 $31.04 $32.15 $33.26 

Effective January 6, 2025: 
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 
$27.40 $28.55 $29.68 $30.84 $31.97 $33.11 $34.26 



14 

Mechanic 

Effective January 6, 2020: December 26, 2022: 
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 
$25.63 $26.70 $27.77 $28.84 $29.91 $30.97 $32.04 
$27.87 $29.03 $30.20 $31.36 $32.52 $33.68 $34.84 

Effective January 4, 2021: January 8, 2024: 
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 
$26.40 $27.50 $28.60 $29.70 $30.80 $31.90 $33.00 
$28.71 $29.90 $31.11 $32.30 $33.49 $34.69 $35.88 

Effective January 6, 2025: 
Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 
$29.57 $30.80 $32.04 $33.27 $34.49 $35.73 $36.96 

*There will be an annual wage only reopener for 2022.

New employees shall be brought in at the appropriate step, as determined by 
the Employer, based on relevant education and experience.  

Employees brought in at Step 1 will move to Step 2 after six (6) months of 
employment, contingent on their meeting the expectations for the position. 
They will subsequently be moved to Step 3 at their one-year anniversary, 
contingent on their meeting the expectations for the position.  

All employees on Step 3 thru Step 6 will move to the next step on the 
anniversary date of their employment, contingent on their meeting the 
expectations for the position. except that employees employed by the City of 
Waseca as of January 1, 2017 who will move to the next step on the first full 
pay period following July 1, which will be treated as their anniversary date for 
the purpose of moving steps going forward. 

Failure to perform a performance review prior to the date the employee 
would receive their next step increase will result in the employee receiving 
the step increase, and for the purposes of, the increase will be considered 
meeting the expectations for the position. Failure to perform a timely review, 
and providing the employee a step increase does not indicate an employee is 



15 

performing satisfactorily for the reasons of future disciplinary actions or 
performance improvement measures.  

Water/Wastewater Treatment Operators will be required to complete and 
maintain Water or Wastewater licensing, whichever is applicable as 
determined by the City, during the course of their employment in order to 
meet the expectations for the position and progress on the Step Plan. The 
requirement shall be as follows: 

Required License Required for: 
Class D License  Step 7 

Incentive pay shall be provided to Water/Wastewater Treatment Operators 
who achieve and maintain the following certifications: 

License & Certification  Incentives 
Type IV Certification +1.45% 
Class C License +1.45% 
Class B License +1.45% 
Class A License +1.45% 

Section 2.  Shift Differential.  A shift differential of 10% of base salary shall be 
paid to regular employees for work performed on days or hours other than 
Monday through Friday between 6:00 AM and 6:00 PM, unless it falls outside 
of the employees scheduled hours as set by the end of shift the preceding 
Friday or last scheduled day worked, whichever is earlier. If a holiday falls on 
Monday through Friday, scheduled and/or call out work shall be paid the shift 
differential.  

Typical work hours shall be between 7:00 AM and 3:30 PM, except as where 
the employee’s supervisor informs the employee of the change in schedule by 
the preceding Friday or last scheduled day worked, whichever is earlier.  

Shift Differential will not be paid in conjunction with Overtime. 



16 

ARTICLE 16 – OVERTIME 

Section 1.  All work performed after eight (8) consecutive hours in one day or 
forty (40) hours in any one week shall be considered as overtime and shall be 
paid for at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the hourly rate as 
specified in Article 15.  Employees shall not be required to take time off for the 
overtime worked. 

Section 2.  Employees may be assigned overtime work or assigned shifts at the 
discretion of the Employer.  Overtime shall be divided as equally as 
practicable.  Employees shall be required to work overtime unless excused by 
the Employer.  Employees who refuse to work overtime may be subject to 
disciplinary action. 

ARTICLE 17 – VACATIONS 

Section 1.  All regular Employees employed by this Agreement shall be 
entitled to a vacation with pay as specified in Article 15 each year in 
accordance with the following schedule: 

One (1) year but less than  Three (3) weeks containing 
Twelve (12) years of employment fifteen (15), working days 

120 hours per year 

Twelve (12) years or more of Four (4) weeks containing 
employment twenty (20) working days 

160 hours per year 

Section 2.  All full-time Employees in service will accrue vacation days in 
accordance with the schedule listed above.  Vacation shall accrue to all full-
time employees for continuous service from the date of initial employment to 
a full-time position, at the rate of ten (10) hours shall be earned for each 
month of service where three (3) weeks of vacation applies and 13- 1/3 hours 
shall be earned for each month of service where four (4) weeks of vacation is 
entitled. 

Section 3.  Vacation schedules shall be determined by each department head 
in accordance with departmental requirements.  Earned vacation may be 
accumulated up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) days.  Vacation will not 



17 

accrue or accumulate for more than twenty-five (25) days except upon 
approval of the City Manager.  Vacation schedules shall be determined by each 
Department Head within department requirements.  There shall be no 
maximum accrual on vacation. Upon retirement or termination of 
employment the employee shall be paid up to a maximum of two hundred 
(200) accrued hours. 

Section 4.  Vacation time shall be compensated at the Employees regular rate 
of pay.  When a holiday occurs during a regular vacation, said holiday shall not 
be charged against earned vacation time; pay for such holiday shall be added 
to the Employee's vacation pay.  Since the purpose of a vacation is to give an 
Employee an opportunity to rest and relax, no additional compensation will 
normally be paid an employee in lieu of vacation. 

Section 5.  Each Employee who leaves the City employment for any reason, 
whether voluntary or involuntary, will be paid for earned, unused vacation 
days that have been earned and not taken. 

Section 6.  Unauthorized time off will be charged against vacation, if vacation 
is exhausted time will be charged against sick time.  

Section 7.  Where there are conflicts over a particular period, the senior 
Employee shall be given the preference.  National Guard and Army Reserve or 
related leaves will take precedence over vacations where only a limited 
number of Employees can be let off at any one time. 

ARTICLE 18 – LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

Section 1.  An unauthorized absence from duty during required hours of 
attendance, whether for a day or more, or for any part of a day, shall be 
treated as absence without leave.  Such absences may be made the grounds 
for disciplinary action.  Where conditions warrant and adequate reasons are 
given for failure to secure prior authorization, the absence may be authorized 
by a later grant of leave. If an employee is absent without leave for two (2) 
calendar weeks, his/her employment with the City automatically terminates. 



18 

Section 2.  If any Employee is either on an approved leave of absence without 
pay, or is suspended, or is absent without leave, without securing subsequent 
authorization for such leave, he/she shall not accrue any vacation or sick leave 
for the time they were absent or suspended. Vacation and sick leave accruals 
will be prorated as necessary in order to accomplish this.  Any holidays 
occurring in conjunction with absence without leave, or leave without pay 
shall be forfeited by the employee. 

Section 3.  When the interests of the City can be benefited, the City Manager 
may grant a leave of absence without pay for special reasons for periods 
beyond those allowable for pay provided the appointing authority is willing, 
either to allow the position from which leave is taken to remain vacant, or to 
fill it by temporary appointment until the expiration of such leave. 

Section 4.  FMLA leaves shall be granted per state and federal laws. 

ARTICLE 19 – HOLIDAYS 

Section 1.  The following days shall be recognized as guaranteed, paid 
holidays: 

New Year's Day  Labor Day 
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veteran's Day 
President's Day  Thanksgiving Day 
Good Friday Day after Thanksgiving 
Memorial Day Christmas Eve Day 
Independence Day Christmas Day 

Section 2.  When any of the mentioned holidays fall on a Saturday, the 
preceding day will be the observed holiday.  When any of the mentioned 
holidays fall on a Sunday, the following day will be the observed holiday.  All 
regular Employees required to work on the day recognized as one of the 
above designated holidays shall receive, in lieu of the holiday, pay at two and 
one-half (2-1/2) times regular pay as specified in Article 15.  Any other than 
the above municipal holidays, created by the State Legislature, are not 
guaranteed holidays.   



19 

Section 3.  Each full-time Employee will be entitled to one (1) personal day 
which must be used within the calendar year that it is earned.  The day of the 
use of the personal day will be at the Employee’s discretion subject to 
approval by the department head. 

ARTICLE 20 – SICK LEAVE 

Section 1.  Each Employee shall earn sick leave from date of employment at 
the rate of eight hours per month.  Employees are entitled to paid leave for 
illness to the extent of accumulated sick leave. 

Section 2.  An employee may use personal sick leave benefits provided by the 
Employer for absences due to an illness of or injury to the employee's child, as 
defined in section 181.940, subdivision 4, adult child, spouse, sibling, parent, 
mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandchild, grandparent, or stepparent, for 
reasonable periods of time as the employee's attendance may be necessary, on 
the same terms upon which the employee is able to use sick leave benefits for 
the employee's own illness or injury. 

A. For the purpose of this section, "child" includes a stepchild and a 
biological, adopted, and foster child. 

B. For the purpose of this section, "grandchild" includes a step-
grandchild, and a biological, adopted, and foster grandchild. 

Section 3.  Employees may apply sick leave for personal medical care 
requiring the services of a doctor, dentist, optometrist or other professional 
medical services. 

Section 4.  Employees are required to follow the following three steps to be 
eligible for sick leave: 

1. Report immediately to the Employer the reason for the absence.

2. If the absence is more than three (3) days in length, the Employee
must keep the Employer informed of the Employee's physical
condition; and

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=181.940#stat.181.940.4


20 

3. If required by the Employer, Employees must submit proper
medical certificate for absences exceeding three (3) days.

Section 5.  Employees who claim sick leave when physically and mentally fit 
unless under specific provision of this Agreement shall be subject to 
disciplinary action. 

Section  6.  Employees may accumulate a maximum of one thousand (1,000) 
hours of sick leave. 

ARTICLE 21 – INSURANCE 

Section 1.  The City will contribute eighty percent (80%) of the cost of family 
coverage for major medical coverage, hospitalization plan to cover all 
Employees, during the life of this agreement.  For Employees electing single 
coverage for major medical coverage and hospitalization, the City will pay 
100% of the premium cost for such single coverage and shall rebate to the 
Employee taking single coverage, the sum of $100.00 for each full month the 
employee does not take family coverage.  
Section  1.  The City will contribute the following for each level of coverage for 
major medical coverage, hospitalization plan to cover all employees during 
the life of this agreement. 

Single $950.00 
Employee+1 $1,750.00 
Family $2,500.00 

There shall be an insurance reopener for years 2024 and 2025. 

The City will pay the full premium for up to one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00) in term life insurance coverage for each employee.  Employees 
not choosing dependent coverage cannot be covered at Employer’s expense 
for any additional insurance than the individual group health and life 
insurance.  Additional life insurance can be purchased by employees at the 
employee’s expense to the extent allowed under the Employer’s group policy.  

The City will pay the full premium for disability coverage for each employee.  
Such disability coverage will provide for a ninety (90) day waiting period 
before eligibility for payment after a disability, with such disability payments 



21 

to be 66-2/3rds of employee's base salary to a maximum of six thousand 
dollars $6,000.000 per month. 

Section 2.  Employees eligible for retirement and who retire from City 
employment may elect to leave with the City monies otherwise due them in 
the form of severance pay for the purpose of City payment of health insurance 
contributions under the following conditions:  

1. The amount of severance pay due is more than four thousand
($4,000.00) dollars;

2. The employee signs a form indicating that the employee gives up
any and all rights to the severance pay monies in perpetuity and that
any monies in the account revert to the City in the event of the death
of the employee and dependent (if any dependent is named); and

3. The Federal Internal Revenue Service (IRS) agrees that payments by
the City of insurance premiums from City retained individual
employee severance pay accounts can be a tax free payment from a
non-taxed account as described above.

A ruling from the IRS that such accounts are taxable to the employee or that 
the amount of payments from such accounts is taxable to the employee will 
terminate this provision and result in City payment of all monies in such 
accounts to the employees with all legally required deductions. 

Section 3.  Annuity.  The Employer has an annuity that employees may 
participate in, at the employee’s own expense (see Employee’s Benefit book). 

ARTICLE 22 – BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

Employees will be granted up to four days of funeral leave per year.  Funeral 
leave shall not accrue from year to year.  Employees will be permitted to use 
up to four consecutive working days per year, with pay, as funeral leave upon 
the death of an immediate family member.  This paid leave will not be 
deducted from the employee’s vacation or sick leave balance.  Immediate 
family members (for purposes of funeral leave) are an employee’s parent, 
step-parent, spouse, child or step-child, sibling or step-sibling, grandparent or 



22 
 

step-grandparent, grandchild or step-grandchild, mother-in-law or father-in-
law, grandparent-in-law, sibling-in-law or member of the immediate 
household. 
The actual amount of time off, and funeral leave approved, will be determined 
by the supervisor or Director depending on individual circumstances (such as 
the closeness of the relative, arrangements to be made, distance to funeral, 
etc.). 
 

ARTICLE 23 – INJURY LEAVE 
 
Section 1.  Injury leave, as distinguished from sick leave, shall mean leave with 
pay given to an employee due to absences from duty caused by accident or 
injury as defined in the Worker's Compensation Act of the State of Minnesota 
as amended, arising out of and in the course of City employment. 
 
Section 2.  The employee agrees and shall be obligated to turn over to the City 
all amounts he receives as temporary weekly compensation under the Act. 
 
Section 3.  Any full-time employee who has been employed by the City at least 
six (6) months, injured on his regular job, shall be entitled to full pay to a period 
of ninety (90) calendar days while he is absent from work by reason of such 
injury and receiving Worker’s Compensation payments for lost time.  If any 
portion of the day is reimbursed to the employee by Worker’s Compensation for 
lost time, that portion will be counted toward the ninety (90) day time period.  
These benefit checks will be endorsed over to the City.  At the employee’s option 
the accrued sick leave will not be charged until after and beginning with the 
ninety first (91st) day of absence from work by reason of such injury.  An 
employee who claims an absence from work due to any injury sustained on his 
regular job is subject to examination to be made on behalf of the City by a person 
competent to perform the same and as is designated by the City.  Where doubt 
exists as to the employee’s physical and mental capability to perform the 
Employer shall have the right to require the employee to take a medical 
examination at the City’s expense at a reasonable time. 
 
Section 4.  Nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit the City’s rights 
and authority as specified in Article 4. 
 
 
 



23 
 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 24 – MILITARY LEAVE TRAINING 
 
Each employee of the City who is a member of a Reserve or National Guard 
unit shall be entitled to a Military Leave not to exceed two (2) weeks in any 
calendar year when required to engage in duty in such unit.  No such 
employee shall be subjected to any loss or reduction of vacation or holiday 
privileges due to such absences.  While engaged in such duty the City shall pay 
the difference, if any, between the employee's compensation for military 
activities and his/her regular compensation. 

 
 

ARTICLE 25 – JURY SERVICE 
 
When an employee has been absent from work because of jury service, he/she 
shall be paid his/her regular salary by the Employer with the understanding 
that, at the completion of his/her jury service, he/she shall present their jury 
service check to the Finance Director. 
 
  

ARTICLE 26 – SEVERANCE PAY 
 
Employees retiring and leave employment in good standing after reaching the 
minimum age established by the Public Employees Retirement Act shall 
receive forty-two percent (42%) of his or her accumulated sick leave, up to a 
maximum of 520 hours as severance pay.  Severance pay MUST be remitted 
by the City to the Minnesota State Retirement System to be deposited in a 
Post-Retirement Health Care Savings Plan for the employee as authorized and 
governed by Minnesota Statutes Section 352.98. The employee will not have 
the option of receiving these funds in cash or having them applied for any 
other purpose. No employer contribution shall be made to the Plan, and the 
City shall have no responsibility or liability for management or disbursement 
of any funds remitted to the Plan. 
 
 
 
 



24 

In the event of death or permanent disability, employees or their legal 
survivors shall receive this severance pay. 

A ruling from the IRS that such accounts are taxable to the employee or that 
the amount of payments from such accounts is taxable to the employee 
terminates this provision and results in City payment of all monies in such 
accounts to the employees with all legally required deductions. 

ARTICLE 27 – TRAINING 

Section 1.  The need for training is always indicated by the existence of some 
particular condition or group of conditions, or by some situation which, if 
improved or modified, will increase the efficiency of the employees.  The City 
of Waseca encourages employees to recommend specific areas of training 
needs or training programs which may bring about improvements in their 
productivity. 

Section 2.  When a training program is selected by the City and the employee is 
assigned to attend, reasonable costs incurred in such training shall be paid 
according to City policy.  For non-exempt employees, overtime will be paid only 
when an hourly employee is required by the Employer to attend the training and 
actual training and travel time is in excess of eight (8) hours per day.   

Section 3.  The City shall cover the costs related to Water/Wastewater Operators 
obtaining and maintaining licensure when that license is required and approved 
by the City Manager or his/her designee.  Related to costs for licensure exams, 
the City shall pay for no more than two (2) attempts for each level of licensure. 

ARTICLE 28 – EQUIPMENT 

Section 1.  The City agrees to provide safe working conditions for its employees, 
and employees agree that they will be aware of, know the uses of and will in all 
instances use all the safety equipment furnished to them by the City. 

Section 2.  The City shall furnish all rubber coats, hats, boots, rubber boots, 
gloves, hard hats and all other necessary equipment meeting OSHA standards 



25 
 

for employee protection, as determined by the Employer, and it is the rule of 
the parties hereto that such protective equipment be used.   
 
Safety Shoes/Boots.  The City will provide any necessary safety shoes/boots 
and insulated shoes/boots as required under Section 2 of this Article for the 
safety and well-being of the employees. The Employer shall determine the 
need for such equipment on a case-by-case basis and based on the 
requirements of the employee’s job duties. 
 
Safety Glasses.  The City will reimburse employees up to $350.00 for the 
purchase or repair of prescription or non-prescription OSHA and ANSI 
Z87.1(current standard) approved safety glasses.  This reimbursement shall 
be for up to one (1) pair of glasses per employee per year.  In the event of 
damage or destruction that is work related, the City may replace or repair the 
damaged/destroyed safety glasses without regard to this limitation. 
  
Safety Equipment.  Specific safety equipment may be identified after 
departmental or project review.  Should such equipment needs be identified, 
the CITY will purchase the equipment needed by departmental employees. 
 
Requests for reimbursement must be accompanied by a copy of the receipt. 
 
Section 3.  The City will provide suitable outer garments intended to protect 
employees clothing from usual wear and damage from oils, grease, tar or 
sewage, e.g., while performing such duties as automotive maintenance, crack 
filling, work in inclement weather or sewage pumping.  Such clothing will 
remain in the property of the City and will be maintained and replaced by the 
City as needed. 

 
ARTICLE 29 – WAIVERS  

 
Therefore, the City and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each 
voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other 
shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or 
matter referred to or covered in this Agreement or with respect to any subject 
or matter may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either 
or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement. 

 
 



26 
 

ARTICLE 30 – AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
 
The Union agrees that this Agreement is subject to the Affirmative Action 
Policy of the Employer and that cooperation will be given to ensure that no 
individual shall be discriminated against with respect to compensation, hours 
or conditions of employment because of race, color, religion, sex or national 
origin. 
 

ARTICLE 31 – SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
This Agreement is subject to the laws of the United States, the State of 
Minnesota and the signed municipality.  In the event any provision of this 
Agreement shall be held to be contrary to law by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, from whose final judgment or decree no appeal has been taken 
within the time provided, such provision shall be voided.  All other provisions 
shall continue in full force and effect.  The parties will attempt to work out an 
alternative solution to the voided provision.  
 
 

ARTICLE 32 – TERMINATION  
 
This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect from the 1st day of 
January, 2020 2023, to the 31st day of December 20222025, with an annual 
wage only reopener in year 2 and 3 of the Agreement, and shall be 
automatically renewed from year to year thereafter unless either of the 
parties shall notify the other in writing by July 1, 20222025, or July 1 of each 
succeeding year that it desires to modify or terminate this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



27 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows: 

For:  City of Waseca For:  International Union of 
Operating Engineers Local 70 

_____________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lee Mattson, City Manager David Monsour, Business Manager 
Carl Sonnenberg,  Scott Marsyla, 

_________________________________________ 
Michael Dowdle, President 

_________________________________________ 
Linda Powers, Recording Secretary 

_________________________________________ 
Dan Wietman, Business Representative 
Drew Brodeen, 
_________________________________________ 
Jason Schmidt, Steward 

_________________________________________ 
Jason Muellerlelie, Steward 
Eric Straube, 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Date:  Date: 

DB/ taf /opeiu#12 
Contracts/City Waseca PW 



28 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #1 

City of Waseca, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the International 
Union of Operating Engineers, Local 70, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the 
Union, agree to the following: 

The current policy which was approved by Council action on November 
16, 2004 is as follows and will be followed for the duration of the 
contract effective January 1, 2020 2023. 

Compensatory Time:  The following conditions shall apply to the accrual 
and use of compensatory time for all City employees eligible to receive 
compensatory time.  Employees will be compensated for authorized overtime 
work by either allowing the employee time off or by monetary compensation 
both at a rate of one and one half (1-1/2) times regular pay.  Adequate 
records will be maintained by the employee and the Finance Department.  
Prior to working overtime hours, an employee must receive authorization 
from his/her supervisor and an agreement must be made whether the time 
will be compensated monetarily or with compensatory time.  Unless 
otherwise specified by a labor contract, one and one half (1-1/2) hours of 
compensatory time shall be earned for each full hour of authorized overtime 
worked.  Employees may earn a maximum total of forty (40) forty two (42) 
hours of compensatory time in anyone fiscal year.  Once an employee has 
accumulated forty (40) hours of compensatory time, all further hours for 
overtime or stand by shall be compensated at the rate of time and one half the 
employee’s regular rate of pay. 

Compensatory time will be paid out or taken before the first pay period in 
December.  

For the term of this agreement only, Public Works employees classified as 
Public Works Maintenance Workers, Mechanic and Assistant Mechanic only, 
may earn a maximum total of eighty (80) eighty one (81) hours of 
compensatory time.  



29 

For:  City of Waseca For:  International Union of 
Operating Engineers Local 70 

_____________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lee Mattson, City Manager David Monsour, Business Manager 
Carl Sonnenberg,  Scott Marsyla, 

_________________________________________ 
Dan Wietman, Business Representative 
Drew Brodeen, 
_________________________________________ 
Jason Schmidt, Steward 

_________________________________________ 
Jason Muellerlelie, Steward 
Eric Straube, 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Date:  Date: 

DB/ taf /opeiu#12 



30 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #2 
General Wage Increase 

City of Waseca, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the International 
Union of Operating Engineers, Local 70, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as 
the Union, agree to the following: 

This correspondence serves to confirm the bargaining unit’s agreement 
to apply the ‘Me Too’ agreement for wages in the 2020 – 2022 2023-
2025 calendar years. 

The ‘Me Too’ agreement assures that if any general wage increase (Cost 
of Living Adjustment) is given to any employee(s) at the City of Waseca, 
it will also be given to all IUOE Local 70 represented employees, 
employed by the City. The wage increase shall be implemented for all 
union employees using the same provisions as used for the initial 
employee(s) wage increase. 

For:  City of Waseca For:  International Union of 
Operating Engineers Local 70 

_____________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Lee Mattson, City Manager David Monsour, Business Manager 
Carl Sonnenberg,  Scott Marsyla, 

_________________________________________ 
Dan Wietman, Business Representative 
Drew Brodeen, 
_________________________________________ 
Jason Schmidt, Steward 

_________________________________________ 
Jason Muellerlelie, Steward 
Eric Straube, 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Date:  Date: 

DB/ taf /opeiu#12 



31 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #3 
Seasonal Work Hours Agreement 

(For Public Works Maintenance Worker (Streets division only), 
Mechanic and Assistant Mechanic) 

City of Waseca, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the International 
Union of Operating Engineers, Local 70, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as 
the Union, agree to the following: 

• Monday thru Thursday work hours 6:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. with a
thirty (30) minute unpaid lunch period.  This equals four (4) ten
(10) hour days for a total of forty (40) hours.

• One Maintenance Worker and either one Mechanic or Assistant
Mechanic employee (alternating) will work five (5) eight (8) hour
days so that someone is available on Friday.  Hours for these
employees will be Monday thru Thursday from 6:30 a.m. to 3 p.m.
with a thirty (30) minute unpaid lunch period and Friday from 7:00
a.m. to 3:30 p.m. with a thirty (30) minute unpaid lunch period.

• A time-off request for Friday by the employee working the five (5)
eight (8) hour days shall not be approved without alternate
coverage approval of the supervisor.

• A work week that includes a paid holiday shall revert to eight (8)
hour work days.

• On the ten (10) hour work days, overtime compensation is eligible
after the ten (10) hour work day.

• The summer work hours shall be in effect from May through
October.

• The City or the Union may end the summer hours for any reason at
any time based on unforeseen circumstances.  Any changes will
begin on the first day of the work week.



32 
 

• The City or the Union agree that the summer hours shall maintain 
existing work coverage and work expectations of the City as an 
agreement of good faith.  

 
• Employee benefits not addressed in this agreement are not changed 

because of this agreement.  
 
• Employee time off requests (sick and vacation) shall be based on a 

ten (10) hour work day.  
 
 Shift differential shall only be paid once seasonal work hours have 

been satisfied.  This shall include the employees working Monday 
through Friday after they have satisfied their seasonal work hours. 

 
 

For:  City of Waseca    For:  International Union of 
       Operating Engineers Local 70 
 
_____________________________________  _________________________________________ 
Lee Mattson, City Manager   David Monsour, Business Manager 
Carl Sonnenberg,     Scott Marsyla,    
       _________________________________________ 
       Dan Wietman, Business Representative 
       Drew Brodeen, 
       _________________________________________ 
       Jason Schmidt, Steward 
 
       _________________________________________ 
       Jason Muellerlelie, Steward 
       Eric Straube, 
 
_________________________________   _________________________________ 
Date:       Date: 
 
DB/ taf /opeiu#12 

 
 
 
 
 



33 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT #4 

This Letter of Agreement (“LOA”) is made by and between the City of Waseca (“Employer”) 
and International Union of Operating Engineers, Local No. 70 (“Union”). 

WHEREAS, the Union is the exclusive representative for certain employees of the 
Employer in the appropriate unit (“Bargaining Unit Employees”), including 
employees in the position of Water Utility/Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator; 

WHEREAS, the Employer and Union are parties to a labor contract (the “Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, no Employer employee will be in the position of Supervisor – WWTP, a 
non-bargaining unit position, effective October 13, 2014 and for an indefinite time;  

WHEREAS, as a result of this, Employer may deem it necessary to assign employees in 
the position of Water Utility/Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator to perform certain 
additional duties and responsibilities that were performed by Supervisor - WWTP;  

WHEREAS, the assignment of these duties and responsibilities may in certain 
circumstances result in a material increase in the nature, level and/or quantity of 
work for the Bargaining Unit Employees assigned; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Union desire to establish the wage differential to be paid to 
Bargaining Unit Employees assigned to perform these certain additional duties and 
responsibilities in the absence of an employee in the position of Supervisor - WWTP.  

NOW, THEREFORE, all parties hereto, in consideration of their mutual covenants 
and understandings to be performed, as hereinafter set forth, understand as follows: 

Article 1. Wage Differential 

A Bargaining Unit Employee in the position of Water Utility/Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator shall be paid the following in addition to any other compensation 
otherwise owing to the employee, subject to Employer discretion and any employee 
performance review process established by the Employer, for such time worked in 
which he or she is expressly assigned on an ongoing basis to perform the following 
duties and responsibilities of the Supervisor – WWTP position by Utilities Director 
or his or her designee:     

A. Laboratory Assistant Coordinator:  up to 5.0% of base hourly rate of 
the Bargaining Unit Employee specified Article 15, Sections 1 and 2 of 
the Labor understanding. 



34 
 

B. Biosolids Assistant Coordinator = up to 5.0% of base hourly rate of the 
Bargaining Unit Employee specified Article 15, Sections 1 and 2 of the 
Labor understanding. 

 
C. NPDES Permit Assistant Coordinator = up to 1.0% of base hourly rate 

of Bargaining Unit Employee specified Article 15, Sections 1 and 2 of 
the Labor understanding. 

 
The performance of any employee being paid a wage differential will be reviewed by 
the Employer.  Based on the review, the Employer may change or eliminate the 
wage differential for the employee. This wage differential is wholly independent of 
and shall not be included in determining pay owing to the employee related to time 
not worked, which includes, but is not limited to, holiday, sick leave and vacation 
time.  This wage differential shall be included in determining pay owing to the 
employee related to time worked while assigned the above-duties and 
responsibilities, which includes, but is not limited to, overtime and call back time. 
 
Article 2. Entire Understanding 
 
This LOA constitutes the entire understanding among the parties hereto. No 
representations, warranties, covenants, or inducements have been made to any 
party concerning this LOA, other than the representations, covenants, or 
inducements contained and memorialized in this LOA. This LOA supersedes all prior 
negotiations, oral and written understandings, policies and practices with respect 
thereto addressing the specific subject matter addressed in this LOA. 
 
Article 3. Waiver of Bargaining 
 
While this LOA is in full force and effect, Employer and Union each voluntarily and 
unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated 
to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered 
in this LOA. 
 
Article 4. Limitations 
 
This LOA is intended for the sole and limited purpose specified herein.  This LOA 
cannot be construed to be nor does it constitute or establish any admission of the 
Employer, precedent, past practice or otherwise place any prohibition or limitation 
on any management right of the Employer except as otherwise prohibited or limited 
by the express terms of this LOA.  The Employer expressly reserves the right to 
exercise all of its management rights without limitation, including the right to make 
any decision and implement any such decision related to the assignment at issue in 
its sole discretion.  
 
 
 



35 

Article 5. Amendment or Modification 

This LOA or any of its terms may only be amended or modified by a written 
instrument that: (1) expressly states it is amending or modifying the LOA; and (2) is 
signed by or on behalf of all of the parties hereto or their successors in interest.   

Article 6. Voluntary Understanding of the Parties 

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that this LOA is voluntarily entered into 
by all parties hereto as the result of arm’s-length negotiations during which all such 
parties were represented. 

Article 7. Effective Date 

This LOA is effective on the latest date affixed to the signatures on the next page. 

Article 8. Termination 

This LOA may only be terminated by a written instrument that: (i) expressly states it 
is terminating the LOA, (ii) is signed by or on behalf of either party and (iii) is 
delivered either:  (a) at least 30 calendar days both before:  (1) the date the party 
desires that the LOA be terminated and (2) the expiration date of this LOA as stated 
in Article 9, personally with written acknowledgment of receipt completed by the 
recipient in which case the LOA will terminate on the desired termination date or 
(b) at least 33 calendar days both before:  (1) the date the party desires that the LOA 
be terminated and (2) the expiration date of this LOA as stated in Article 9, by 
certified mail, return receipt requested in which case the LOA will terminate on the 
desired termination date.  To be effective, the notice must be delivered to the 
designated representatives of the other party below. 

A. To City: 

City Manager 
City of Waseca 
508 South State Street 
Waseca, MN 56093-3033 

B. To Union: 

Dan Wietman  Drew Brodeen 
International Union of Operating Engineers Local Union No.70 
2722 County Road D East 
White Bear Lake, MN  55110 



36 
 

Until the LOA is terminated as described in this Article, the LOA in its entirety shall 
remain in full force and effect.  If the LOA is terminated as described in this Article, 
the LOA will no longer be in force or effect, effective the calendar day after the 
termination date and components of items addressed in and related to Article 1 of 
this LOA in effect as of the calendar day immediately preceding the effective date of 
this LOA; including, but not limited to, practices, Labor Agreement language and 
other aids in contract interpretation; will revert back to the status quo as of the 
calendar day immediately preceding the effective date of this LOA and treated as if 
this LOA were never negotiated nor entered into.    
 
Article 9. Expiration 
 
This LOA will expire and no longer be in force or effect, effective on the effective 
date of the subsequent Labor Agreement between the parties. 
 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties hereto have made this LOA on the latest date 
affixed to the signatures hereto. 

    
For:  City of Waseca     For:  International Union of 
       Operating Engineers Local 70 
 
_____________________________________   _________________________________________ 
Lee Mattson, City Manager    David Monsour, Business Manager 
Carl Sonnenberg,     Scott Marsyla,     
       _________________________________________ 
       Dan Wietman, Business Representative 
       Drew Brodeen, 
       _________________________________________ 
       Jason Schmidt, Steward 
 
       _________________________________________ 
       Jason Muellerlelie, Steward 
       Eric Straube, 
 
_________________________________   _________________________________ 
Date:       Date: 

 
DB/ taf /opeiu#12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



37 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT - #5 

The City of Waseca (Public Works), hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the 
International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 70, hereinafter referred to as the Union, 
agree to the following: 

In the event the City of Waseca recognizes Juneteenth as an official holiday.  This holiday shall 
be entered into Article 19 – Holidays. 

For:  City of Waseca For:  International Union of Operating
Engineers, Local No. 70 

Carl Sonnenberg, City Manager Scott Marsyla,  Business Manager 

Date: 
Drew Brodeen,  Business Representative 

Jason Schmidt,  Union Steward 

Eric Straube,  Union Steward 

Date: 

DB/taf/opeiu#12 
City Waseca PW LOA  
(5/19/23) 



38 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT - #6 
Flexible Hours 

Waste Water Treatment Plant 

The City of Waseca (Public Works), hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the 
International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 70, hereinafter referred to as the Union, 
agree to the following: 

1. For the period of   2023 to 2023, the Waste Water 
Treatment Operations shall have the option to work the following hours:
A) Two (2) full-time employees shall work five (5) eight (8) hour days.
B) One (1) full-time employee shall work four (4) ten (10) hour days.

2. This Letter of Agreement shall be on a trial basis and may be updated for the 2024-
2025 period.

For:  City of Waseca For: International Union of Operating 
Engineers, Local No. 70 

Carl Sonnenberg, City Manager Scott Marsyla, Business Manager 

Date: 
Drew Brodeen,  Business Representative 

Jason Schmidt,  Union Steward 

Eric Straube,  Union Steward 

Date: 

DB/taf/opeiu#12 
City Waseca PW LOA Flex 
(05/18/23) 



39 



Title: Approve Residential Tax Abatement for 1025 Clear Lake Drive 

(PID 017.710.0330) 

Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 
• Residential Tax

Abatement

Agreement

• Resolution 23-25

Originating 

Department: 

Economic Development Presented By: Economic Development 

Manager 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Approve Resolution 23-25, granting residential tax abatement for 

1025 Clear Lake Drive and approval for signature to Residential Tax Abatement 

Agreement 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Developing High Quality Community Assets 

BACKGROUND: The City Council has already authorized this parcel as eligible for tax abatement through 

Resolution 21-55. 

BUDGET IMPACT: The residential tax abatement requested is 75% of the portion of the City’s share of ad 

valorem property taxes on the qualifying parcel derived from the value of the residential structure for which the 

City issues a building permit and paid by the property owner. The total abatement amount for any single 

qualifying parcel is not to exceed $20,458.85, for a maximum total abatement of City-imposed property taxes 

not to exceed $3,409.81.  The abatements will apply to the City’s share of ad valorem property taxes on the 

qualifying parcels derived from the value of the residential structure for which the City issues a building permit 

and paid by the record owners of such qualifying parcels. 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED:   None.  City Council has already deemed this lot as eligible and 

approved for the Residential Tax Abatement program by Resolution 21-55 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of Resolution 23-25 and Residential Tax Abatement 

Agreement for 1025 Clear Lake Drive. 

Request for City Council Action 

6H



RESOLUTION NO. 23-25 

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 
APPROVING A RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Waseca (“City Council”) has approved a Tax Abatement 
Housing Program to encourage housing development within the City and has asked Waseca County to 
approve a tax abatement to augment the City program; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Waseca desires to encourage, promote and facilitate residential 
development on vacant residential lots located within the City of Waseca (“City”), and has adopted a 
Residential Tax Abatement, a true and correct copy is on file at the offices of the City Manager, pursuant 
to which the City intends to offer abatement of City-imposed property taxes on qualifying residential 
properties in the City for which building permits for single family residential structures are applied for and 
issued by the City on or before December 31, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the parcels of real property for which abatements of City of Waseca-imposed property 
taxes are conditionally approved herein are identified and legally described in Resolution 17-40, Appendix 
A (the “eligible parcels”), and generally consist of every current vacant, unimproved parcel of property in 
a residential zoning district in the City of Waseca that are served by municipal infrastructure including 
central water and sanitary sewer service; and 

WHEREAS, the City will use tax abatement for the purposes provided for in the Abatement Law 
and the City’s approved Tax Abatement to match the proposed term of the abatements for each eligible 
property that satisfies the conditions for abatement established herein (“the qualifying parcels described 
in Resolution 17-40, Appendix A”); and   

WHEREAS, the City proposes to use tax abatement for the purposes provided for in the 
Abatement Law and the Abatement Policy (and hereinafter defined). The proposed term of the 
abatements for each eligible property that satisfies the conditions for abatement established herein (“the 
qualifying parcels”) will be for a term not to exceed six years, with the City abating 75 percent of the 
portion of the City’s share of ad valorem property taxes on the qualifying parcel derived from the value of 
the residential structure for which the City issues a building permit and paid by the property owner. The 
total abatement amount for any single qualifying parcel is not to exceed $20,458.85, for a maximum total 
abatement of City-imposed property taxes not to exceed $3,409.81.  The abatements will apply to the 
City’s share of ad valorem property taxes on the qualifying parcels derived from the value of the residential 
structure for which the City issues a building permit and paid by the record owners of such qualifying 
parcels (the “abatements”); and 

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2016, the Council held a public hearing on the question of the 
abatements, with proper notice being duly given and published in advance; and  

WHEREAS, the Abatements are authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.1812 through 
469.1815 (the “Abatement Law”). 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approve the Tax Abatement Applications 
substantially in form as presented, submitted by Gerald E. Schoenfeld and Susan J. Schoenfeld (1025 Clear 
Lake Drive) Parcel ID #17.710.0330.  

Adopted this ___ day of June 2023. 

____________________________ 
RANDY L ZIMMERMAN 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
JULIA HALL 
CITY CLERK 



(Do not write in the space above.  Reserved for recording/transfer data) 

RESIDENTIAL TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA AND 

AND 

Gerald E. Schoenfeld and Susan J. Schoenfeld 



i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS .........................................................................................................   2 

Section  1.1 Definitions ...................................................................................................   2 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ........................................................   3 

Section 2.1  Representations and Warranties of the City  ...............................................   3 

Section 2.2  Representations and Warranties of the Developer  .....................................   3 

ARTICLE III UNDERTAKINGS BY DEVELOPER AND CITY ................................................   4 

Section 3.1 Construction of Project and Reimbursement of Cost ..................................   4 

Section 3.2 Limitations on Undertaking of the City ......................................................   4 

Section 3.3 Commencement and Completion of Construction ......................................   5 

Section 3.4 Damage and Destruction .............................................................................   5 

Section 3.5 No Change in Use of Project .......................................................................   5 

Section 3.6 Prohibition Against Transfer of Project and Assignment of 

Agreement ...................................................................................................   5 

Section 3.7 Real Property Taxes ....................................................................................   5 

Section 3.8 City Tax Abatements ...................................................................................   6 

ARTICLE IV EVENTS OF DEFAULT .........................................................................................   6 

Section 4.1 Events of Default Defined ...........................................................................   6 

Section 4.2 Remedies on Default ...................................................................................   7 

Section 4.3 No Remedy Exclusive .................................................................................   8 

Section 4.4 No Implied Waiver  .....................................................................................   8 

Section 4.5 Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses .......................................   8 

Section 4.6 Release and Indemnification Covenants .....................................................   8 

ARTICLE V ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS .................................................................................   9 

Section 5.1 Conflicts of Interest/No Personal Liability .................................................   9 

Section 5.2 Non-Discrimination .....................................................................................   9 

Section 5.3 No Merger  ...........................................................................................   9 

Section 5.4 Cleanup .......................................................................................................   9 

Section 5.5 Responsibilities for Costs ............................................................................ 10 

Section 5.6 Notices and Demands .................................................................................. 10 

Section 5.7 Counterparts ................................................................................................ 10 

Section 5.8 Duration ....................................................................................................... 10 

Section 5.9 Provisions Surviving Rescission or Expiration ........................................... 10 

Section 5.10 Records—Availability and Retention ......................................................... 10 

Section 5.11 Data Practices .............................................................................................. 11 

Section 5.12 Rules of Interpretation ................................................................................. 11 



RESIDENTIAL TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 6 day of June, 2023, by and among the City of 

Waseca, Minnesota, a Minnesota municipal corporation (the “City”) and Gerald E. Schoenfeld 

and Susan J. Schoenfeld, a married couple (the “Developer”), 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, following notice and a public hearing, the Waseca City Council adopted 

Resolution No. 16-56 on December 20, 2016 (the “City Abatement Resolution”), and thereby 

approved a program (the “City Abatement Program”) to encourage residential development on 

vacant residential lots in the City by providing abatement of the City’s share of ad valorem 

property taxes on qualifying parcels derived from the value of the residential structure for which 

the City issues a building permit and paid by the record owner(s) of such qualifying parcels in 

accordance with the referenced City Abatement Resolution, State law and the terms of the City’s 

Residential Tax Abatement Policy (attached to the City Abatement Resolution as Appendix A); 

and 

WHEREAS, Developer has been approved for a building permit for a residential 

structure located at 1025 Clear Lake Drive in the City, Parcel No. 177110300 (the “Property”), 

and the City has determined that the Property has qualified for tax abatement pursuant to the 

City’s Residential Tax Abatement Policy; and   

WHEREAS, the City has approved abatement of the increased portion of the City’s share 

of ad valorem property taxes on the Property derived from the value of the residential 

development of the Property for a period not to exceed SIX (6) years, specifically with respect to 

the payable 2025 through 2030 property taxes, in a total amount not to exceed $20,458.85; and 

WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Property and fulfillment of this 

Agreement are in the best interests of the City, will contribute to the growth and modernization 

the housing options in the City, and increase the tax base in the City, and are in accordance with 

the public purpose and provisions of the applicable state and local laws and requirements under 

which the Property will be developed and is being assisted; and 

WHEREAS, the requirements of the Business Subsidy Law, Minnesota Statutes, Section 

116J.993 through 116J.995, do not apply to this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City believes that the Project will meet the conditions of the Tax 

Abatement Act and Tax Abatement Program in that: (a) the City expects the benefits to the City 

from this Agreement to equal or exceed the costs to the City of this Agreement; and (b) the City 

finds that granting the Tax Abatement is in the public interest because it will increase or preserve 

the City’s tax base, provide employment opportunities in the City, and increase the housing 

opportunities available in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer and the City desire to enter into this Agreement in 

satisfaction of applicable requirements of the City, and to set out the undertakings and obligations 

of each party from this point forward with respect to the development of the Property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of the 

parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows: 



2 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1  Definitions.  All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein 

shall have the following meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

Abatement Program means the program to encourage residential development on vacant 

residential lots in the City by providing the City Tax Abatements in accordance with the 

referenced City Abatement Resolution, State law and the terms of the City’s Residential Tax 

Abatement Policy; 

Abatement Resolution means Resolution No. 16-56 on December 20, 2016, together with 

the Residential Tax Abatement Policy attached thereto as Appendix A; 

Agreement means this Agreement, as the same may be from time to time modified, 

amended or supplemented; 

Business Day means any day except a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on 

which banking institutions in the City are authorized by law or executive order to close; 

City means the City of Waseca, Minnesota; 

Code means the City’s Code of Ordinances; 

Developer means Gerald E. Schoenfeld and Susan J. Schoenfeld; and their heirs, 

successors and assigns; 

Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 4.1; 

Project means the construction of a residential structure by the Developer on the 

Property;  

Project Improvements means each and all of the improvements to be performed and/or 

constructed on the Property as part of the Project, pursuant to the Project Plans reviewed and 

approved by the City and for which the City issues a building permit.  The timing of Developer’s 

construction of the Project is described in more detail in remaining portions of this Agreement.  

All Project Improvements shall be completed to City specifications as provided in the Project 

Plans, this Agreement, and the Code; 

Project Plans means all submissions required by the City Ordinances, or this Agreement 

with respect to the Project and all plans, drawings, plats and related documents for the 

construction of the Project, approved by the City and Developer, irrespective of whether the 

Developer’s and/or the City’s final approval of any such documents occurs before or after the 

execution and delivery of this Agreement;   

Property means the real property legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto; 

State means the State of Minnesota; 



3 

Tax Abatement Act means Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 through 469.1815; 

Tax Abatement Program means the Residential Tax Abatement Policy approved in the 

Abatement Resolutions, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.1812 through 469.1815, as 

amended; and 

Tax Abatements means the City’s reimbursement to the Developer of the City’s share of 

ad valorem property taxes on the Property derived from the value of the residential development 

of the Property and paid by the Developer for a period not to exceed [ten] years, specifically with 

respect to the payable 2025 through 2033 property taxes, in a total amount not to exceed 

$20,458.85, pursuant to the specific provisions of Section 3.8; 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1  Representations and Warranties of the City.  The City makes the following 

representations and warranties: 

(1) The City is a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State and has 

the power to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

(2) The City Abatement Program was created, adopted and approved in accordance 

with the terms of the Tax Abatement Act. 

(3) The City has made the findings required by the Tax Abatement Act for the Tax 

Abatement Program. 

(4) This Agreement has been duly approved by the City Council of the City and the 

execution and delivery of this Agreement has been authorized by such City Council. 

Section 2.2  Representations and Warranties of the Developer.  The Developer makes the 

following representations and warranties: 

(1)  The Developer is a married couple and residents of the State and has the power to 

enter into the Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder and is not in violation of any 

local, state or federal laws. 

(2) The Developer will cause the Project to be constructed in accordance with the 

terms of the Agreement, the Project Plans, and all local, state, and federal laws and regulations 

(including, but not limited to, environmental, zoning, energy conservation, building code and 

public health laws and regulations, City Policy and Code). 

(3) The Developer will obtain or cause to be obtained, in a timely manner, all 

required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a timely manner, all requirements of 

all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations which must be obtained or met before 

the Project may be lawfully constructed.  Without in any way limiting the foregoing, the 



4 

Developer will request and seek to obtain from the City, if necessary, such approvals, variances, 

conditional use permits, zoning changes and other required City approvals as may be applicable. 

(4) The Project will, as of the date it is completed and subject to the issuance of City 

approvals as herein contemplated, contain only uses permitted under the Code.  

(5) The Project would not be undertaken by the Developer, and in the opinion of the 

Developer would not be economically feasible within the reasonably foreseeable future, without 

the assistance and benefit to the Developer provided for in this Agreement. 

(6) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement is prevented, limited by or conflicts with or results in a breach of, 

the terms, conditions or provision of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, 

agreement or instrument of whatever nature to which the Developer is now a party or by which it 

is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing. 

(7) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City with respect to any litigation 

commenced with respect to the project, but only to the extent that the City and the Developer are 

not adverse parties to the litigation. 

(8) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic, 

drainage, utility, parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in connection 

with the construction and operation of the Project. 

ARTICLE III 

UNDERTAKINGS BY DEVELOPER AND CITY 

Section 3.1  Construction of Project and Reimbursement of Cost. 

(1) The costs of the construction of the Project shall be paid by the Developer.  The 

Developer will construct the Project in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the 

Project Plans and at all times prior to the termination of this Agreement will operate and 

maintain, preserve and keep the Project or cause the Project to be maintained, preserved and kept 

with the appurtenances and every part and parcel thereof, in good repair and condition. 

(2) Upon completion of the Project, the City shall partially reimburse the Developer 

for the costs of the Project pursuant to the Abatement Program as provided in Section 3.8. 

Section 3.2  Limitations on Undertaking of the City.  Notwithstanding the provisions of 

Sections 3.1, the City shall have no obligation to reimburse the Developer for the costs of the 

Project, if the City, at the time or times such payment is to be made, is entitled under Section 4.2 

to exercise any of the remedies set forth therein as a result of an Event of Default which has not 

cured. 

Section 3.3  Commencement and Completion of Construction. 

The Developer shall complete the Project within twelve months of the issuance of the 

building permit for the Project.  All Project Improvements to be constructed or provided by the 



5 

Developer shall be in conformity with the Project Plans as submitted by the Developer and 

approved by the City. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to impair or limit any of the City’s rights or 

responsibilities under its zoning laws or construction permit processes. 

Section 3.4  Damage and Destruction.  In the event of damage or destruction of the 

Project the Developer shall repair or rebuild the Project. 

Section 3.5  No Change in Use of Project.  The City’s obligations pursuant to this 

Agreement shall be subject to the continued operation of the Project by the Developer. 

Section 3.6  Prohibition Against Transfer of Project and Assignment of Agreement.  The 

Developer represents and agrees that prior to the termination date of this Agreement the 

Developer shall not transfer the Project or any part thereof or any interest therein, without the 

prior written approval of the City.  The City shall be entitled to require as conditions to any such 

approval that; 

(1) Any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and financial responsibility, 

in the reasonable judgment of the City, necessary and adequate to fulfill the obligations 

undertaken in this Agreement by the Developer. 

(2) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory to the City shall, 

for itself and its successors and assigns, and expressly for the benefit of the City, have expressly 

assumed all of the obligations of the Developer under this Agreement and agreed to be subject to 

all the conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject. 

(3) There shall be submitted to the City for review and prior written approval all 

instruments and other legal documents involved in effecting the transfer of any interest in this 

Agreement or the Project. 

Section 3.7  Real Property Taxes.  The Developer acknowledges that it is obligated under 

law to pay all real property taxes and special assessments payable with respect to all parts of the 

Property acquired and owned by it which are payable pursuant to this Agreement, State law and 

any other statutory or contractual duty that shall accrue subsequent to the date of its acquisition of 

title to the Property (or part thereof) and until title to the property is vested in another person.  

The Developer agrees that for tax assessments so long as this Agreement remains in effect: 

(1) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability of 

any tax statute relating to the ad valorem property taxation of real property contained on the 

Property determined by any tax official to be applicable to the Project or the Developer or raise 

the inapplicability of any such tax statute as a defense in any proceedings with respect to the 

Property, including delinquent tax proceedings; provided, however, “tax statute” does not include 

any local ordinance or resolution levying a tax; 

(2) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the constitutionality of 

any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property contained on the Property determined by 

any tax official to be applicable to the Project or the Developer or raise the unconstitutionality of 

any such tax statute as a defense in any proceeding, including delinquent tax proceeding with 

respect to the Property; provided, however, “tax statute” does not include any local ordinance or 

resolution levying a tax; 



 6 

 

(3) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, either presently or prospectively 

authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.181, or any other State or federal law, of the ad 

valorem property taxation of the Property so long as this Agreement remains in effect. 

 

 Section 3.8  Tax Abatements.   

 

(1) The Tax Abatements paid to the Developer shall be in accordance with and 

subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Abatement Resolution and the Tax 

Abatement Act. 

 

(2)  The Tax Abatement shall be for a duration not to exceed SIX (6) years and shall 

apply to the City’s share of ad valorem property taxes on the Property derived from the value of 

the residential development of the Property and paid by the Developer, beginning with taxes 

payable in 2026 and continuing through taxes payable in 2031 in the lesser amount annually of 

$3,409.81 or 75% percent of the City’s share of ad valorem property taxes on the Property 

derived from the value of the residential development of the Property for that year.  

 

(3) On or before January 1 and July 1 each year commencing July 1, 2026 and 

including January 1, 2031 (adjust as necessary if different term selected)], the Developer shall 

invoice the City in the amount of the City’s portion of ad valorem property taxes on the Property 

paid by Developer in the previous six-month period to which the Developer is entitled to 

reimbursement under this Section.  On or before February 1 and August 1 each year commencing 

August 1, 2026 and including February 1, 2031, the City shall pay the Developer the amount of 

the Tax Abatements received by the City in the previous six-month period. 

 

(4) In order to be entitled to the City Tax Abatements provided for in this 

Agreement, the Developer shall not be in default within the City of any of its payment obligations 

respecting any taxes, assessments, utility charges or other governmental impositions.  

Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Article, the City shall not have any obligation to the 

Developer with respect to the Abatement of taxes hereunder if the City, at the time or times such 

obligation is required, is entitled to exercise any of the remedies set forth in this Agreement as a 

result of an Event of Default, which has not been cured.   

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT 

 

 Section 4.1  Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be “Events of Default” 

under this Agreement and the term “Event of Default” shall mean whenever it is used in this 

Agreement any one or more of the following events: 

 

 (1) Failure by the Developer to timely pay when due the payments required to be 

paid or secured under any provision of this Agreement or which are otherwise required, including 

the payment of any ad valorem real property taxes, special assessments, utility charges or other 

governmental impositions with respect to the Property, the Project or any portion thereof. 

 

 (2) Failure by the Developer to cause the construction of the Project to be completed 

pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations of this Agreement. 

 



7 

(3) Failure by the Developer to observe or perform any other covenant, condition, 

obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under the Agreement. 

(4) If Developer admits in writing of its inability to pay its debts generally as they 

become due, or shall file or be involuntarily named as a debtor in a petition in bankruptcy, or 

shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall consent to the appointment of a 

receiver of itself or of the whole or any substantial part of the Property. 

(5) If the Developer, on a petition in bankruptcy filed against it, be adjudicated 

bankrupt, or a court of competent jurisdiction shall enter an order or decree appointing, without 

the consent of the Developer, a receiver of the Developer or of the whole or substantially all of its 

property, or approve a petition filed against the Developer seeking reorganization or 

rearrangement of the Developer under the federal bankruptcy laws, and such adjudication, order 

or decree shall not be vacated or set aside or stayed within sixty (60) days from the date of entry 

thereof. 

(6) If the Developer is in default under any mortgage and has not entered into a 

workout agreement with the Mortgagee within sixty (60) days after such default 

Section 4.2  Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 

4.1 occurs and is continuing, the City, as specified below, in addition to any other remedies or 

rights given the City under this Agreement, after the giving of thirty (30) days’ written notice to 

the Developer citing with specificity the item or items of default and notifying the Developer that 

it has thirty (30) days within which to cure said Event of Default, may take any one or more of 

the following actions: 

(1) The City may suspend its performance under this Agreement, including the 

payment of any Tax Abatement, until it receives assurances from the Developer, deemed 

adequate by the City, that the Developer will cure its default and continue its performance under 

this Agreement. 

(2) The City may cancel and rescind the Agreement and reassess any ad valorem 

property taxes previously abated in proportion to the Developer’s failure to construct or install the 

Project Improvements against the Developer in the manner of a special assessment. 

(3) The City may take any action, including legal or administrative action, in law or 

equity, which may appear necessary or desirable to collect any payments due under this 

Agreement, or to enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant 

of the Developer under this Agreement; provided that any exercise by the City of its rights or 

remedies hereunder shall always be subject to and limited by, and shall not defeat, render invalid 

or limit in any way the lien of any mortgage authorized by this Agreement; and provided further 

that should any Mortgagee succeed by foreclosure of the mortgage or deed in lieu thereof in 

respect to the Developer’s interest in the Property, the Mortgagee shall, notwithstanding the 

foregoing, be obligated to perform the obligations of the Developer to complete construction of 

the Project described and in the manner required hereunder, but only to the extent that the same 

have not theretofore been performed by the Developer. 

(4) The City may withhold any certificate or permit required hereunder. 

The notice of an Event of Default required in this Section shall be effective on the date 

mailed or hand delivered to the Developer. 



8 

Section 4.3  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the 

City is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every 

such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this 

Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.  No delay or omission to 

exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or 

shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from 

time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  Except as expressly set forth herein, it 

shall not be necessary to give notice to exercise a remedy, other than such notice as may be 

required in this Article. 

Section 4.4  No Implied Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this Agreement 

should be breached by any party hereto and thereafter waived by another party, such waiver shall 

be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other 

concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

Section 4.5  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses.  Whenever any Event of 

Default occurs and the City shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of 

payments due or to become due or for the enforcement or performance or observance of any 

obligation or agreement on the part of the Developer herein contained, the Developer agrees that 

it shall, on demand therefore, pay to the City the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other 

expenses so incurred by the City. 

Section 4.6  Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

(1) The Developer expressly releases from and covenants and agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City and its officers, agents, servants, employees and all members of the City 

Council, its planning commission and other boards or commissions harmless from and against all 

claims, costs and liability of every kind and nature, for injury or damage received or sustained by 

any person or entity in connection with, or an account of the Project, the Property, or the 

performance of work at the development site and elsewhere pursuant to this Agreement, and 

further releases such officers employees, agents and members from any personal liability in 

connection with handling funds pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  The indemnification 

provided hereunder shall not apply to intentional acts or the gross misconduct of the individual or 

entity so indemnified.   

(2) Except for any willful misrepresentation or any willful or wanton misconduct of 

the following named parties, the Developer agrees to protect and defend the City and its officers, 

agents, servants and employees and all members of the City Council, its planning commission 

and other boards or commissions,  now or forever, and further agrees to hold the aforesaid 

harmless from any claim, demand, action or other proceeding whatsoever by any person or entity 

whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from a breach of the obligations of the Developer under 

this Agreement, or the transactions contemplated hereby or the acquisition, construction, 

installation, ownership, maintenance and operation of the Project. 

(3) The City and its officers, agents, employees and all members of the City Council, 

its planning commission and other boards or commissions shall not be liable for any damages or 

injury to the persons or property of the Developer or its officers, agents, servants or employees or 

any other person who may be about the Project due to any act of negligence of any person. 



9 

(4) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City 

contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and 

obligations of the City and not of any officer, agent, servant, employee or any members of the 

City Council, its planning commission and other boards or commissions of the City in the 

individual capacity thereof. 

(5) The Developer is not an agent of the City and this Agreement shall not be 

construed as creating a joint venture, partnership or other joint arrangement between the 

Developer and the City relating to the Project. 

ARTICLE V 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

Section 5.1  Conflicts of Interest/No Personal Liability.  No member of the governing 

body of the City shall have any personal interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, nor shall 

any such member or any other official or employee of the City participate in any decision relating 

to the Agreement which affects his or her personal interests or the interests of any corporation, 

partnership or association in which he or she is directly or indirectly interested.  No member, 

official or employee of the City shall be personally liable to the Developer in the event of any 

default or breach by the City or for any amount that may become due to the Developer for any 

obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 5.2.  Non-Discrimination.  Developer shall not violate any law applicable to it 

with respect to civil rights and non-discrimination including, without limitation, Minnesota 

Statutes, Section 181.59. 

Section 5.3.  No Merger.  None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to be or 

shall be merged by reason of any deed transferring any interest in any part of the Property and 

any such deed shall not be deemed to affect or impair the provisions of this Agreement. 

Section 5.4.  Cleanup.  The Developer shall promptly clear or cause to be cleared from 

the Property and any public streets or property, any soil, earth or debris or unnecessary personal 

property or equipment resulting from construction work by the Developer or its agents or assigns.  

If Developer fails to do so within two (2) business days of receipt of telephone or personally 

delivered personal notice from the City, the City shall be entitled to undertake such corrective 

action as it deems necessary and to charge the Developer for the cost of such corrective action.  

This remedy is in addition to any other remedy available to the City hereunder.  Developer’s 

failure to pay such charges when billed by the City shall be an additional Event of Default under 

this Agreement. 

Section 5.5.  Responsibility for Costs.  Developer shall be responsible for the following 

costs incurred with respect to this Agreement, which costs shall be paid as set forth below: 

(1) The Developer shall reimburse the City for reasonable, administrative, and out-

of-pocket costs, expenses and disbursements incurred in the enforcement of this Agreement, 

including engineering and attorney’s fees.  



10 

(2) The Developer shall pay in full all bills submitted to it by the City within thirty 

(30) days after receipt.  If the bills are not paid on time, the City may without further notice to 

Developer exercise any one or more of the remedies provided to the City by Article 5 hereunder. 

Section 5.6  Notices and Demands.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this 

Agreement, a notice, demand or other communication under this Agreement by any party to any 

other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, 

postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered personally, and 

(1) in the case of the Developer is addressed to or delivered personally to: 

Gerald E. Schoenfeld and Susan J. Schoenfeld 

1025 Clear Lake Drive 

Waseca, MN 56093 

(2) in the case of the City is addressed to or delivered personally to: 

City Manager  

City of Waseca  

508 South State Street 

Waseca, MN 56093 

or at such other address with respect to any such party as that party may, from time to time, 

designate in writing and forward to the other, as provided in this Section. 

Section 5.7  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 5.8  Duration.  This Agreement shall remain in effect through February 1, 2032 

(same date as last reimbursement payment in § 3.8(3)), unless earlier terminated or rescinded in 

accordance with its terms. 

Section 5.9  Provisions Surviving Rescission or Expiration.  Sections 4.5 and 4.6 shall 

survive any rescission, termination or expiration of this Agreement with respect to or arising out 

of any event, occurrence or circumstance existing prior to the date thereof. 

Section 5.10  Records—Availability and Retention.  Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, 

subd. 5, the Developer agrees that the City, the State Auditor, or any of their duly authorized 

representatives at any time during normal business hours and as often as they may reasonably 

deem necessary, shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, and transcribe any 

books, documents, papers, records, etc., which are pertinent to the accounting practices and 

procedures of the Developer and involve transactions relating to this Agreement.  The Developer 

agrees to maintain these records for a period of six years from the date of termination of this 

Agreement. 

Section 5.11  Data Practices.  The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to 

the requirements of Minnesota’s Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes, Section 

13.01 et seq. 

Section 5.12.  Rules of Interpretation. 



11 

(1) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with and 

governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota, 

(2) Includes Entire Agreement. The words "herein" and "hereof' and words of similar 

import, without reference to any particular section or subdivision refer to this Agreement as a 

whole rather than any particular section or subdivision hereof. 

(3) Original Sections.  References herein to any particular article, section or 

paragraph hereof are to the section or subdivision of this Agreement as originally executed. 

(4) Headings.  Any headings, captions, or titles of the several parts, articles, sections, 

and paragraphs of this Agreement are inserted for convenience and reference only and shall be 

disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its provision.  

(5) Conflict Between Agreements.  In the event of any conflict between the terms, 

conditions and provisions of this Agreement and the terms, conditions and provisions of any other 

instrument, the terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall control and take 

precedence. 

(6) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement including any Schedules and Exhibits hereto 

contain the entire agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter herein, and no other prior 

or contemporary agreements, oral or written, shall be binding upon the parties hereto. 

(7) Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns as provided and as 

conditioned in this Agreement. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 

name and on its behalf, and the Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 

name and on its behalf, on or as of the date first above written. 

Gerald E. Schoenfeld 

___________________________ 

Susan J. Schoenfeld  

___________________________ 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF Waseca ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of June 2023, by 

Gerald E. Schoenfeld and Susan J. Schoenfeld, a married couple, Developer.  

 _________________________________ 

Notary Public 



13 

CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 

By____________________________ 

Its Mayor 

By____________________________ 

Its City Manager 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

) ss. 

COUNTY OF WASECA ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____day of June, 2023, by 

Randy L. Zimmerman, as Mayor, and Carl C. Sonnenberg, as City Manager, for the City 

of Waseca, Minnesota. 

 _________________________________ 

Notary Public 

This Instrument was Drafted By: 

Flaherty & Hood, P.A. 

525 Park Street, Suite 470 

St. Paul, MN 55103 

(651) 225-8840     



Exhibit A 

Legal Description of Property 

Parcel # 17.710.0300 

Lot 003, Block 001 

West Shores Third Subdivision 

Waseca City 

aka 

1025 Clear Lake Drive  

Waseca, MN 56093 



Title: RESOLUTION NO. 23-22 AUTHORIZING A GRANT CONTRACT WITH THE 

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (MNDOT) FOR 

WASECA MUNICIPAL AIRPORT MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION COSTS 

Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 
Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action:  MOTION 

 REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

 RESOLUTION 

 ORDINANCE 

 DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Resolution No. 23-22 

MnDOT Grant Contract 

Originating 

Department: 
Engineering Presented By: Consent Agenda 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Motion to adopt Resolution No. 23-22 authorizing a grant 

agreement with MnDOT for Waseca Municipal Airport maintenance and operation 

costs 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 

2030 goals? 

Creating high quality community assets. 

BACKGROUND: On May 18th, City staff received a Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) 

contract agreement for Waseca Municipal Airport maintenance and operation grant funding during State fiscal 

years 2024 and 2025.  This agreement requires City Council authorization before it can go into effect.    

BUDGET IMPACT: If approved, a total of $44,304 ($22,152 per fiscal year) will be available for the 

reimbursement of Waseca Municipal Airport maintenance and operation costs. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Waseca City Council adopt Resolution No. 23-22 authorizing 

a grant contract with MnDOT for Waseca Municipal Airport maintenance and operation costs. 

Request for City Council Action 

6I



MnDOT Contract No. 1053339 

Page 1 of 6 

City of Waseca 2 4-2 5 MO 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

AIRPORT MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION GRANT CONTRACT 

State Project Number (S.P.): A8101-MO24 
State Project Number (S.P.): A8101-MO25 

This contract is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Transportation (“State”) and City of 
Waseca acting through its City Council (“Recipient”). 

RECITALS 

1. Minnesota Statutes §§360.015 and 360.305 authorize State to provide financial assistance to airports for
maintenance and operation activities.

2. Recipient owns, operates, or controls an airport (“Airport”) in the state system, and Recipient desires financial
assistance from the State for maintenance and operation activities for State Fiscal Year 2024 and State Fiscal Year
2025. 

3. Recipient represents that it is duly qualified and agrees to perform all services described in this contract to the
satisfaction of the State.

CONTRACT TERMS 

1. Term of Contract and Survival of Terms

1.1. Effective Date: This contract will be effective on July 1, 2023, or the date State obtains all required 
signatures under Minnesota Statutes §16B.98, subdivision 5, whichever is later. As 
required by Minnesota Statutes §16B.98 Subd. 7, no payments will be made to Recipient 
until this contract is fully executed.  

1.2. Expiration Date: This contract will expire on June 30, 2025. 

1.3. Survival of Terms: All clauses which impose obligations continuing in their nature and which must survive 
in order to give effect to their meaning will survive the expiration or termination of this 
contract, including, but not limited to, the following clauses: 9. Indemnification; 10. State 
Audits; 11. Government Data Practices; 13. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue; and 
14. Data Disclosure.

2. Recipient’s Duties

2.1. Recipient will operate and maintain the Airport in a safe, serviceable manner for aeronautical purposes only for
the use and benefit of the public. 

2.2. The Recipient will keep the runway and the area around the lights mowed at the Airport. The grass must be 
mowed at least 7 feet beyond the lights, and the grass must not exceed 6 inches in height on the landing area. 
The areas around any navigational aids will be mowed and plowed to keep the area clear for access by a 
vehicle. 

2.3. If the Airport remains operational during the winter months, the Recipient will keep at least one runway, 
associated taxiway, and apron area cleared of snow and ice to the same priority as arterial roads. Snow banks 
must be limited in height so that aircraft wings, engines, and propellers will clear them. Landing strip markers 
and/or lights must remain visible. 



MnDOT Contract No. 1053339 

Page 2 of 6 

2.4. If the State contracts for the periodic paint striping of the Airport’s runways and taxiways during the term of 
this Contract, the Recipient will cooperate with the marking operation. The Recipient must coordinate seal coat 
pavement maintenance projects with the State to maximize the pavement marking life. 

2.5. The Recipient will allow a representative of the State’s Office of Aeronautics access to any area of the Airport 
necessary for the purpose of periodic inspections. 

2.6. The Recipient will promptly pay all utility bills, including those required for navigational aids. 

3. Recipient’s Assurances

3.1. In accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 360.305, subdivision 4, Recipient assures the State that Recipient will
operate and maintain the Airport in a safe, serviceable manner for public aeronautical purposes only for a period 
of one year from the date the Recipient receives final reimbursement under this contract. 

3.2. Recipient represents and warrants that Recipient has established a zoning authority for the Airport, and such 
authority has completed, or is in the process of and will complete, with due diligence, an airport zoning 
ordinance in accordance with Minnesota Statutes §§ 360.061 to 360.074. 

3.3. Recipient will comply with all required grants management policies and procedures set forth through Minnesota 
Statutes §16B.97, Subd. 4 (a) (1). 

4. Third-Party Contracting

4.1. Recipient will comply with all applicable local, state, or federal laws, regulations, policies and procedures in the
procurement of goods and services funded in whole or in part under this Contract. 

5. Consideration and Payment

5.1. Consideration. State will pay for all eligible telecommunication, maintenance, and operation costs incurred by
Recipient under this Contract as follows: 

5.1.1. Basis. Recipient will be reimbursed for 100% of telecommunication costs associated with the operation 
of state-owned navigational aids. Recipient will be paid for 75% of all other eligible maintenance and 
operation costs not reimbursed by any other source. Eligible maintenance and operations costs will be 
determined at the sole discretion of State’s Authorized Representative. 

5.1.2. Telecommunication Amount. State has currently obligated $0.00 in each State fiscal year to reimburse 
eligible telecommunication costs at 100%. 

5.1.3. Maintenance and Operation Amount. State has currently obligated  $22,152.00  in each State fiscal 
year to reimburse other eligible costs at 75%. 

5.1.4. Total Obligation. The total obligation of State for all compensation and reimbursements to Recipient 
under this contract will not exceed  $44,304.00  (State fiscal years 2024 and 2025). 

5.2. Payment. 

5.2.1. Invoices. The Recipient must submit a reimbursement request of its eligible costs to the Director of the 
Office of Aeronautics on a quarterly basis or as directed by State’s Authorized Representative. The 
State’s Office of Aeronautics will supply the reimbursement request forms which Recipient must submit. 
Reimbursement requests must be submitted according to the following schedule: 

• On or after October 1, and no later than November 15, for the period July 1 through September 30.
• On or after January 1, and no later than February 15, for the period October 1 through December

31.
• On or after April 1, and no later than May 15, for the period January 1 through March 31.
• On or after July 1, and no later than August 15, for the period April 1 through June 30.

The State may reject costs that the State determines are not eligible maintenance and operations 
expenses.  

5.2.2. All Invoices Subject to Audit. All invoices are subject to audit, at State’s discretion. 



MnDOT Contract No. 1053339 

Page 3 of 6 

5.2.3. State’s Payment Requirements. State will promptly pay all valid obligations under this contract as 
required by Minnesota Statutes §16A.124. State will make undisputed payments no later than 30 days 
after receiving Recipient’s invoices and progress reports for services performed. If an invoice is 
incorrect, defective or otherwise improper, State will notify Recipient within ten days of discovering the 
error. After State receives the corrected invoice, State will pay Recipient within 30 days of receipt of 
such invoice. 

5.2.4. Grant Monitoring Visit and Financial Reconciliation. If State’s total obligation is greater than 
$50,000 in section 5.1.4, above, during the period of performance the State will make at least one 
monitoring visit and conduct annual financial reconciliations of Recipient’s expenditures. The State’s 
Authorized Representative will notify Recipient’s Authorized Representative where and when any 
monitoring visit and financial reconciliation will take place, which State employees and/or contractors 
will participate, and which Recipient staff members should be present. Recipient will be provided notice 
prior to any monitoring visit or financial reconciliation. Following a monitoring visit or financial 
reconciliation, Recipient will take timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies identified by State. 
At least one monitoring visit and one financial reconciliation must be completed prior to final payment 
being made to Recipient.  

5.2.5. Closeout. The State will determine, at its sole discretion, whether a closeout audit is required prior to 
final payment approval. If a closeout audit is required, final payment will be held until the audit has been 
completed. Monitoring of any capital assets acquired with grant funds will continue following grant 
closeout. 

6. Conditions of Payment

6.1. All services provided by Recipient under this contract must be performed to State’s satisfaction, as determined
at the sole discretion of State’s Authorized Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal, state 
and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, including business registration requirements of the Office of 
the Secretary of State. Recipient will not receive payment for work found by State to be unsatisfactory or 
performed in violation of federal, state or local law. In addition to the foregoing, Recipient will not receive 
payment for Airport’s failure to pass periodic inspections by a representative of the State’s Office of 
Aeronautics.  

7. Authorized Representatives

7.1. State’s Authorized Representative. State’s Authorized Representative will be:

Name/Title: Jenny Bahneman, Grants Specialist Coordinator 

Address: Office of Aeronautics, 

395 John Ireland Boulevard, Mail Stop 410 

Saint Paul, Minnesota 55155 

E-Mail: jenny.bahneman@state.mn.us 

State’s Authorized Representative or his /her successor, will monitor Recipient’s performance and has the 
authority to accept or reject the services provided under this contract. If the Recipient’s duties are performed in 
a satisfactory manner, the State’s Authorized Representative will accept each reimbursement request submitted 
for payment. 

7.2. Recipient’s Authorized Representative. Recipient’s Authorized Representative will be: 

Name/Title: Nate Willey, City Engineer 

Address: 508 South State Street, Waseca, MN  56093 

Telephone: (507) 835-9716 

E-Mail: natew@ci.waseca.mn.us 

If Recipient’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this contract, Recipient must immediately 
notify State. 



MnDOT Contract No. 1053339 

Page 4 of 6 

8. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver and Contract Complete

8.1. Assignment. Recipient may neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this contract without the
prior consent of State and a fully executed Assignment Contract, executed and approved by the same parties 
who executed and approved this contract, or their successors in office. 

8.2. Amendments. An amendment to this contract must be in writing and will not be effective until it has been 
executed and approved by the same parties who executed and approved the original contract, or their successors 
in office. 

8.3. Waiver. If State fails to enforce any provision of this contract that failure does not waive the provision or 
State’s right to subsequently enforce it. 

8.4. Contract Complete. This contract contains all prior negotiations and agreements between State and Recipient. 
No other prior understanding regarding this contract, whether written or oral, may be used to bind either party. 

8.5. Electronic Records and Signatures.  The parties agree to contract by electronic means.  This includes using 
electronic signatures and converting original documents to electronic records. 

8.6. Certification.  By signing this Agreement, the Recipient certifies that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal or state awards. 

9. Indemnification

9.1. In the performance of this contract by Recipient, or Recipient’s agents or employees, and to the extent permitted
by law, Recipient must indemnify, save and hold State, its agents, and employees harmless from any and all 
claims or causes of action, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by State, to the extent caused by 
Recipient’s: 1) intentional, willful or negligent acts or omissions; 2) breach of contract or warranty; or 3) breach 
of the applicable standard of care. The indemnification obligations of this section do not apply if the claim or 
cause of action is the result of State’s sole negligence. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal 
remedies Recipient may have for State’s failure to fulfill its obligation pursuant to this contract. 

10. State Audits

10.1. Under Minnesota Statutes § 16B.98, Subd.8, the Recipient’s books, records, documents, and accounting
procedures and practices of Recipient, or other party relevant to this grant contract or transaction, are subject to 
examination by the State and/or the State Auditor or Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six 
years from the end of this contract or receipt and approval of all final reports, whichever is later. Recipient will 
take timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies identified by an audit. 

11. Government Data Practices

11.1. Recipient and State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes
Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by State under this contract, and as it applies to all data created, 
collected, received, stored, used, maintained or disseminated by Recipient under this contract. The civil 
remedies of Minnesota Statutes §13.08 apply to the release of the data referred to in this clause by either 
Recipient or State. If Recipient receives a request to release the data referred to in this Clause, Recipient must 
immediately notify State and consult with State as to how Recipient should respond to the request. Recipient’s 
response to the request must comply with applicable law. 

12. Workers’ Compensation

12.1. Recipient certifies that it is in compliance with Minnesota Statutes §176.181, subdivision 2, pertaining to
workers’ compensation insurance coverage. Recipient’s employees and agents will not be considered State 
employees. Any claims that may arise under the Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these 
employees and any claims made by any third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of these 
employees are in no way the State’s obligation or responsibility. 

13. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue

13.1. Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this contract. Venue for all legal
proceedings arising out of this contract, or its breach, must be in the appropriate state or federal court with 
competent jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 



MnDOT Contract No. 1053339 

Page 5 of 6 

14. Data Disclosure

14.1. Under Minnesota Statutes §270C.65, and other applicable law, Recipient consents to disclosure of its social
security number, federal employer tax identification number and Minnesota tax identification number, already 
provided to State, to federal and state agencies and state personnel involved in the payment of state obligations. 
These identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federal and state laws which could result in 
action requiring Recipient to file state tax returns and pay delinquent state tax liabilities, if any, or pay other 
state liabilities. 

15. Termination and Suspension

15.1. Termination by the State. The State may terminate this contract with or without cause, upon 30 days written
notice to the Recipient. Upon termination, the Recipient will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata 
basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

15.2. Termination for Cause. The State may immediately terminate this grant contract if the State finds that there 
has been a failure to comply with the provisions of this contract, that reasonable progress has not been made, 
that fraudulent or wasteful activity has occurred, that Recipient has been convicted of a criminal offense relating 
to a state grant agreement, or that the purposes for which the funds were granted have not been or will not be 
fulfilled. The State may take action to protect the interests of the State of Minnesota, including the refusal to 
disburse additional funds and requiring the return of all or part of the funds already disbursed. 

15.3. Termination for Insufficient Funding. The State may immediately terminate this contract if: It does not obtain 
funding from the Minnesota Legislature; or If funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the 
payment of the services covered here. Termination must be by written or fax notice to the Recipient. The State 
is not obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date of termination. However, 
the Recipient will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to 
the extent that funds are available. The State will not be assessed any penalty if the contract is terminated 
because of the decision of the Minnesota Legislature, or other funding source, not to appropriate funds. The 
State will provide the Recipient notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the State’s receiving 
that notice. 

15.4. Suspension. The State may immediately suspend this contract in the event of a total or partial government 
shutdown due to the failure to have an approved budget by the legal deadline. Work performed by the Recipient 
during a period of suspension will be deemed unauthorized and undertaken at risk of non-payment. 

16. Discrimination Prohibited by Minnesota Statutes §181.59

16.1. Recipient will comply with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes §181.59 which requires that every contract for
or on behalf of the State of Minnesota, or any county, city, town, township, school, school district or any other 
district in the state, for materials, supplies or construction will contain provisions by which Contractor agrees: 
1) That, in the hiring of common or skilled labor for the performance of any work under any contract, or any
subcontract, no Contractor, material supplier or vendor, will, by reason of race, creed or color, discriminate 
against the person or persons who are citizens of the United States or resident aliens who are qualified and 
available to perform the work to which the employment relates; 2) That no Contractor, material supplier, or 
vendor, will, in any manner, discriminate against, or intimidate, or prevent the employment of any person or 
persons identified in clause 1 of this section, or on being hired, prevent or conspire to prevent, the person or 
persons from the performance of work under any contract on account of race, creed or color; 3) That a violation 
of this section is a misdemeanor; and 4) That this contract may be canceled or terminated by the state of 
Minnesota, or any county, city, town, township, school, school district or any other person authorized to grant 
contracts for employment, and all money due, or to become due under the contract, may be forfeited for a 
second or any subsequent violation of the terms or conditions of this contract. 

17. Limitation.

17.1. Under this contract, the State is only responsible for disbursing funds. Nothing in this contract will be construed
to make the State a principal, co-principal, partner, or joint venturer with respect to the Project(s) covered 
herein. The State may provide technical advice and assistance as requested by the Recipient, however, the 
Recipient will remain responsible for providing direction to its contractors and consultants and for 



MnDOT Contract No. 1053339 

Page 6 of 6 

administering its contracts with such entities. The Recipient’s consultants and contractors are not intended to be 
third party beneficiaries of this contract. 

STATE ENCUMBRANCE VERIFICATION 

Individual certifies that funds have been encumbered as 
required by Minnesota Statutes §16A.15 and §16C.05.* 

Signed: 

Date:  

SWIFT Contract (SC) ID No. 

Purchase Order (PO) ID No.  

*PO staged and to be encumbered with future State fiscal
year funds.

RECIPIENT 

Recipient certifies that the appropriate person(s) have 
executed Contracts on behalf of Recipient as required by 
applicable articles, bylaws or resolutions. 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

By:  
(with delegated authority) 

Title: 

Date: 

MnDOT CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

By: 

Date: 

Mayor (Randy L. Zimmerman)

City Clerk (Julia Hall)



Rev. 1/2016 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-22 

AUTHORIZATION  TO  EXECUTE 
MINNESOTA  DEPARTMENT  OF  TRANSPORTATION 

AIRPORT  MAINTENANCE  AND  OPERATION GRANT CONTRACT 

It is resolved by the City of Waseca as follows: 

1. That the state of Minnesota Contract Number 1053339,

"Airport Maintenance and Operation Grant Contract,” at the

Waseca Municipal Airport is accepted.

2. That the __________________________ and ____________________________  are
(Mayor, Chairperson, President, etc.) (Clerk, Auditor, Secretary, etc.)

authorized to execute this Contract and any amendments on behalf of the 

City of Waseca. 

CERTIFICATION 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF  ____________________ 

I certify that the above Resolution is a true and correct copy of the Resolution adopted by the 

 _________________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of the Recipient) 

at an authorized meeting held on the  ______________  day of  ________________________ , 20 

as shown by the minutes of the meeting in my possession. 

Signature:  _________________________________ 
(Clerk or Equivalent) 

 __________________________________________ 
CORPORATE  SEAL /OR/ NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:  ____________________ 

Mayor City Clerk

Waseca

City of Waseca

6th June 23



1

Nate Willey

From: Graham Johnson <graham@alccompanies.net>
Sent: Tuesday, May 30, 2023 1:56 PM
To: Nate Willey
Subject: Graham Johnson Resignation

Nate,  
This email is to inform you that I will be resigning from the Waseca Airport Board. I want to thank you and 
everyone involved with the airport for the opportunity to work with you.  

--  
Graham Johnson  
ALC Companies Inc 
(507)461-5134 

To help protect your privacy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the  
Internet.

  EXTERNAL EMAIL SENDER – Think Before You Click !! 

6J





RESOLUTION NO. 23-24 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVING OFF-SITE GAMBLING 

TO WASECA HOCKEY ASSOCIATION 

WHEREAS, Waseca Hockey Association has submitted an Application to Conduct Off-Site 
Gambling at the following location: 

408 8th Avenue NE 
Waseca, MN  56093 

and, 

WHEREAS, City approval is required by the State of Minnesota Gambling Control Board, for a 
gambling premises located within city limits. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Waseca City Council does hereby approve Off-Site 
Gambling to Waseca Hockey Association at 408 8th Ave NE, Waseca, MN. 

Adopted this 6th day of June 2023. 

___________________________________ 
RANDY L. ZIMMERMAN 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
JULIA HALL 
CITY CLERK 

6K



MINNESOTA LAWFUL GAMBLING 

LG230 Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling No Fee 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 

Organization Name: _______________________________________________ License Number:____________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________ City: _________________________, MN Zip: _______________ 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Name: ________________________________  Daytime Phone:____________________________

Gambling Manager Name: _________________________________________ Daytime Phone:____________________________

GAMBLING ACTIVITY 

Twelve off-site events are allowed each calendar year not to exceed a total of 36 days. 

From ____/____/____  to  ____/____/____ 

Check the type of games that will be conducted: 

____ Raffle ____ Pull-Tabs ____ Bingo ____ Tipboards ____ Paddlewheel 

GAMBLING PREMISES 

Name of location where gambling activity will be conducted: _________________________________________________________ 

Street address and 
City (or township): _______________________________________________________ Zip: _________ County: _____________

 Do not use a post office box.

 If no street address, write in road designations (example: 3 miles east of Hwy. 63 on County Road 42).

Does your organization own the gambling premises? 

____ Yes If yes, a lease is not required. 

____ No If no, the lease agreement below must be completed, and signed by the lessor. 

LEASE AGREEMENT FOR OFF-SITE ACTIVITY (a lease agreement is not required for raffles) 

Rent to be paid for the leased area: $________________ (if none, write "0") 

All obligations and agreements between the organization and the lessor are listed below or attached. 

 Any attachments must be dated and signed by both the lessor and lessee.

 This lease and any attachments is the total and only agreement between the lessor and the organization conducting lawful

gambling activities.

 Other terms, if any:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

Lessor's Signature: _____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________________ 

Print Lessor's Name: ___________________________________________________________ 

CONTINUE TO PAGE 2 

6/15   Page 1 of 2

Waseca Hockey Association 02258

PO BOX 133 Waseca 56093

Jason Attenberger 507-469-5771

Joshua Lynch 507-837-2141

07 12 2023 07 16 2023

✔ ✔

Waseca County Fairgrounds

408 8th Ave NE 56093 Waseca

✔

0



LG230 Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling 

Acknowledgment by Local Unit of Government:  Approval by Resolution 

CITY APPROVAL 

for a gambling premises 
located within city limits 

COUNTY APPROVAL 

for a gambling premises 
located in a township 

City Name: __________________________________________ 

Date Approved by City Council: __________________________ 

Resolution Number: ___________________________________ 
(If none, attach meeting minutes.) 

Signature of City Personnel: 

___________________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________ Date Signed: ___________ 

County Name: ________________________________________ 

Date Approved by County Board: _________________________ 

Resolution Number: ___________________________________ 
(If none, attach meeting minutes.) 

Signature of County Personnel: 

____________________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________ Date Signed: ____________ 

TOWNSHIP NAME: ____________________________________  

Complete below only if required by the county. 
On behalf of the township, I acknowledge that the organization is 
applying to conduct gambling activity within the township limits.  
(A township has no statutory authority to approve or deny an 
application, per Minnesota Statutes 349.213, Subd. 2.) 

Print Township Name: __________________________________ 

Signature of Township Officer: ___________________________ 

Title: _______________________ Date Signed:_____________ 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The person signing this application must be your organization's CEO and have their name on file with the Gambling Control Board.  
If the CEO has changed and the current CEO has not filed a LG200B Organization Officers Affidavit with the Gambling Control 
Board, he or she must do so at this time. 

I have read this application, and all information is true, accurate, and complete and, if applicable, agree to the lease terms as 
stated in this application. 

____________________________________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature of CEO (must be CEO’s signature; designee may not sign) Date 

Mail or fax to: 

Minnesota Gambling Control Board
Suite 300 South
1711 West County Road B
Roseville, MN 55113
Fax:  651-639-4032

No attachments required. 

Questions?  Contact a Licensing Specialist at 651-539-1900. 

This publication will be made available in alternative format (i.e. large print, braille) upon request. 

Data privacy notice:  The information requested on this form (and any 

attachments) will be used by the Gambling Control Board (Board) to 

determine your organization’s qualifications to be involved in lawful 

gambling activities in Minnesota.  Your organization has the right to refuse 
to supply the information; however, if your organization refuses to supply 

this information, the Board may not be able to determine your 

organization’s qualifications and, as a consequence, may refuse to issue a  

permit.  If your organization supplies the information requested, the Board 

will be able to process your organization’s application. 

Your organization’s name and address will be public information when 

received by the Board.  All other information provided will be private data 

about your organization until the Board issues the permit.  When the 

Board issues the permit, all information provided will become public. 

If the Board does not issue a permit, all information provided remains 

private, with the exception of your organization’s name and address which 

will remain public. 

Private data about your organization are available to:  Board members, 
Board staff whose work requires access to the information; Minnesota’s 

Department of Public Safety; Attorney General; commissioners of 

Administration, Minnesota Management & Budget, and Revenue; 

Legislative Auditor; national and international gambling regulatory 

agencies; anyone pursuant to court order; other individuals and agencies 

specifically authorized by state or federal law to have access to the 

information; individuals and agencies for which law or legal order 

authorizes a new use or sharing of information after this notice was given; 

and anyone with your written consent. 

6/15   Page 2 of 2

Local unit of government 

must sign. 

An equal opportuity employer



MINNESOTA LAWFUL GAMBLING 

LG230 Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling No Fee 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 

Organization Name: _______________________________________________ License Number:____________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________ City: _________________________, MN Zip: _______________ 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Name: ________________________________  Daytime Phone:____________________________

Gambling Manager Name: _________________________________________ Daytime Phone:____________________________

GAMBLING ACTIVITY 

Twelve off-site events are allowed each calendar year not to exceed a total of 36 days. 

From ____/____/____  to  ____/____/____ 

Check the type of games that will be conducted: 

____ Raffle ____ Pull-Tabs ____ Bingo ____ Tipboards ____ Paddlewheel 

GAMBLING PREMISES 

Name of location where gambling activity will be conducted: _________________________________________________________ 

Street address and 
City (or township): _______________________________________________________ Zip: _________ County: _____________

 Do not use a post office box.

 If no street address, write in road designations (example: 3 miles east of Hwy. 63 on County Road 42).

Does your organization own the gambling premises? 

____ Yes If yes, a lease is not required. 

____ No If no, the lease agreement below must be completed, and signed by the lessor. 

LEASE AGREEMENT FOR OFF-SITE ACTIVITY (a lease agreement is not required for raffles) 

Rent to be paid for the leased area: $________________ (if none, write "0") 

All obligations and agreements between the organization and the lessor are listed below or attached. 

 Any attachments must be dated and signed by both the lessor and lessee.

 This lease and any attachments is the total and only agreement between the lessor and the organization conducting lawful

gambling activities.

 Other terms, if any:

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

Lessor's Signature: _____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________________ 

Print Lessor's Name: ___________________________________________________________ 

CONTINUE TO PAGE 2 

6/15   Page 1 of 2

Waseca Hockey Association 02258

PO BOX 133 Waseca 56093

Jason Attenberger 507-469-5771

Joshua Lynch 507-837-2141

07 12 2023 07 16 2023

✔ ✔

Waseca County Fairgrounds

408 8th Ave NE 56093 Waseca

✔

0



LG230 Application to Conduct Off-Site Gambling 

Acknowledgment by Local Unit of Government:  Approval by Resolution 

CITY APPROVAL 

for a gambling premises 
located within city limits 

COUNTY APPROVAL 

for a gambling premises 
located in a township 

City Name: __________________________________________ 

Date Approved by City Council: __________________________ 

Resolution Number: ___________________________________ 
(If none, attach meeting minutes.) 

Signature of City Personnel: 

___________________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________ Date Signed: ___________ 

County Name: ________________________________________ 

Date Approved by County Board: _________________________ 

Resolution Number: ___________________________________ 
(If none, attach meeting minutes.) 

Signature of County Personnel: 

____________________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________ Date Signed: ____________ 

TOWNSHIP NAME: ____________________________________  

Complete below only if required by the county. 
On behalf of the township, I acknowledge that the organization is 
applying to conduct gambling activity within the township limits.  
(A township has no statutory authority to approve or deny an 
application, per Minnesota Statutes 349.213, Subd. 2.) 

Print Township Name: __________________________________ 

Signature of Township Officer: ___________________________ 

Title: _______________________ Date Signed:_____________ 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

The person signing this application must be your organization's CEO and have their name on file with the Gambling Control Board.  
If the CEO has changed and the current CEO has not filed a LG200B Organization Officers Affidavit with the Gambling Control 
Board, he or she must do so at this time. 

I have read this application, and all information is true, accurate, and complete and, if applicable, agree to the lease terms as 
stated in this application. 

____________________________________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature of CEO (must be CEO’s signature; designee may not sign) Date 

Mail or fax to: 

Minnesota Gambling Control Board
Suite 300 South
1711 West County Road B
Roseville, MN 55113
Fax:  651-639-4032

No attachments required. 

Questions?  Contact a Licensing Specialist at 651-539-1900. 

This publication will be made available in alternative format (i.e. large print, braille) upon request. 

Data privacy notice:  The information requested on this form (and any 

attachments) will be used by the Gambling Control Board (Board) to 

determine your organization’s qualifications to be involved in lawful 

gambling activities in Minnesota.  Your organization has the right to refuse 
to supply the information; however, if your organization refuses to supply 

this information, the Board may not be able to determine your 

organization’s qualifications and, as a consequence, may refuse to issue a  

permit.  If your organization supplies the information requested, the Board 

will be able to process your organization’s application. 

Your organization’s name and address will be public information when 

received by the Board.  All other information provided will be private data 

about your organization until the Board issues the permit.  When the 

Board issues the permit, all information provided will become public. 

If the Board does not issue a permit, all information provided remains 

private, with the exception of your organization’s name and address which 

will remain public. 

Private data about your organization are available to:  Board members, 
Board staff whose work requires access to the information; Minnesota’s 

Department of Public Safety; Attorney General; commissioners of 

Administration, Minnesota Management & Budget, and Revenue; 

Legislative Auditor; national and international gambling regulatory 

agencies; anyone pursuant to court order; other individuals and agencies 

specifically authorized by state or federal law to have access to the 

information; individuals and agencies for which law or legal order 

authorizes a new use or sharing of information after this notice was given; 

and anyone with your written consent. 

6/15   Page 2 of 2

Local unit of government 

must sign. 

An equal opportuity employer

06/02/2023



Title: Personnel Policy Update- Adding Juneteenth as Holiday Effective June 19, 2023. 

Meeting Date: 6/6/2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Updated Personnel 

Policy: 

Section 10. 

Originating 

Department: 

Administration Presented By: City Clerk 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

good governance. 

BACKGROUND: The State of Minnesota approved a law effective August 1, 2023, to recognize Juneteenth as 

a State Holiday to be recognized annually on June 19th. A provision was submitted moving the law effective 

date to June 19th, 2023, where no public business can be transacted on a holiday, except in case of necessity per 

Minn. Statute §645.44, which lists all of the state holidays. 

BUDGET IMPACT: The impact will align with all other city holidays required by State and Federal Law 

already accepted in the Personnel Policy. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the Waseca City Council accept the document and make a motion 

to approve these updated City of Waseca Personnel Policies. 

Request for City Council Action 

7A



City of Waseca Personnel Policies 
Adopted: 12/1/2020 

Effective: 1/1/2021 
Updated: 6/6/2023

26 

SECTION 10: HOLIDAYS 
The City observes the following official holidays for all regular full-time and part-time employees: 

New Year’s Day 

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

Presidents Day 

Good Friday 

Memorial Day 

Independence Day 

Juneteenth

Labor Day 

Veterans Day Thanksgiving 

Day Friday after 

Thanksgiving Christmas Eve 

Christmas Day 

When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be the “observed” holiday, and when a holiday 

falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be the “observed” holiday for City operations/facilities that are 

closed on holidays. 

Full-time employees will receive pay for official holidays at their normal straight time rates, provided they 

are on paid status on the last scheduled day prior to the holiday and first scheduled day immediately after 

the holiday.  Part-time employees will receive pro-rated holiday pay based on the number of hours normally 

scheduled.  Any employee on a leave of absence without pay from the City is not eligible for holiday pay.  

Paid holidays are not available to intermittent or seasonal employees. 

All employees scheduled to work on a holiday will receive one and one-half times their regularly hourly rate 

for hours worked on that day. 

Employees wanting to observe holidays other than those officially observed by the City may request either 

vacation leave or unpaid leave for such time off. 



Title: State Bonding Application Authorization 

Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Resolution #23-26 

Resolution #23-27 

Originating 

Department: 

Administration Presented By: City Manager 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

Proposed Action: Approve Resolution 23-26 & Resolution 23-27 - Authorizing 

and Supporting Applications for State Bonding Dollars to Assist in the 

Construction of a 1-million-gallon Water Tower and Sanitary Sewer Clean Water 

Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Project. 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Creating High Quality Community Assets 

BACKGROUND: The City of Waseca suffers from chronic clean water inflow and infiltration (I&I) into its 

deteriorating sanitary sewer system during prolonged wet periods and large rainfall events. Over the past 10 

years, Wase has spent approximately $5 million reconstructing and rehabilitating deficient segments of sanitary 

sewers to mitigate excessive I&I into its system. As the City continues to make improvements there is still illicit 

discharge of wastewater continuing to be required to prevent property and infrastructure damage.  

The current I&I project over the next 3 years is estimated to cost $3 million to be completed in three phases. By 

supporting Resolution #23-27, an application for the state bonding bill and if awarded will help move this 

project forward and lessen the burden on rate payers that would otherwise result without funding through the 

State bonding application. 

A new 1-million-gallon water tower is needed to facilitate development along State Highway 14 and State 

Highway 2 and to allow the City the ability to decommission the existing 1954 downtown .5 MG legged water 

tank while still being able to support commercial and residential growth. Development of a water tower on the 

west side of Waseca will also support the reuse of the former Brown Printing / Quad Graphics industrial 

complex located adjacent to the tower site that is in need of enhanced fire protection and increased water 

pressure along with being able to adequately support the newly constructed ConAgra manufacturing facility and 

the vegetable processing complex. 

This water tower project is projected to cost $6 million, with support of Resolution #23-26, an application for 

the state bonding bill will again lessen the burden on rate payers if awarded while also allowing the City to 

move forward in creating high quality community assets through providing water system operation 

improvements and increased reliability. 

BUDGET IMPACT: Without pursuing additional funding sources, Waseca rate payers will be impacted by 

increased rates to maintain aging infrastructure and continued growth. 

Request for City Council Action 

7B



RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the approval of the following resolutions: 

1. Resolution 23-26 – Authorization and Support for an Application for State Bonding Dollars to Assist in

the Construction of a 1-million-gallon Water Tower.

2. Resolution 23-27 - Authorization and Support for an Application for State Bonding Dollars to Assist in

the Sanitary Sewer Clean Water Inflow and Infiltration Reduction Project.



RESOLUTION NO. 23-26 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASECA APPROVING A STATEMENT OF 
AUTHORIZATION AND SUPPORT FOR AN APPLICATION FOR STATE BONDING 

DOLLARS TO ASSIST IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF A ONE MILLION GALLON 
WATER TOWER 

WHEREAS, the City Council has committed to seek funding for the construction 
of a 1-million-gallon water tower to provide water storage to meet peak water demand, 
growth efforts, and to enhance fire protection, and; 

WHEREAS, previous City Council discussions and engineering analysis have 
supported the need for a water tower located on the west side of Waseca, and; 

WHEREAS, a compelling reason a tower is needed is to facilitate development 
along State Highway 14 and State Highway 2 is to allow the city to be able to 
decommission the existing 1954 downtown .5 MG legged tank while still being able to 
support commercial and residential growth at the Highway 14 west interchange. 
Development of a water tower on the west side of Waseca will also support the reuse of 
the former Brown Printing / Quad Graphics industrial complex located adjacent to the 
tower site that is in need of enhanced fire protection and increased water pressure 
along with being able to adequately support the newly constructed ConAgra 
manufacturing facility and the Vegetable Processing complex. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Waseca that: 

1. City staff is authorized to seek funding through a Capital budget request to
Governor Walz via the Office of Management and Budget.

2. The City Council supports and endorses said application.

Adopted this 6th day of June, 2023. 

____________________________________ 
RANDY L. ZIMMERMAN 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
JULIA HALL 
CITY CLERK 



RESOLUTION NO. 23-27 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASECA APPROVING A STATEMENT OF 
AUTHORIZATION AND SUPPORT FOR AN APPLICATION FOR STATE BONDING 
DOLLARS TO ASSIST IN THE SANITARY SEWER CLEAN WATER INFLOW AND 

INFILTRATION REDUCTION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the City Council has committed to seek funding for the sanitary 
sewer clean water inflow and infiltration reduction project to extend the useful life of the 
existing wastewater system and to improve system operations and reliability while 
decreasing system operations and maintenance costs, and; 

WHEREAS, previous City Council discussions and engineering analysis have 
supported the need for rehabilitation and reconstruction of the sanitary sewer system, 
and; 

WHEREAS, a compelling reason for the reconstruction and rehabilitation of the 
sanitary sewer system is to reduce clean water inflow and infiltration into deficient 
sections of the existing wastewater system during large storm events to acceptable 
levels and ensure that treated water complies with the Environmental Protection 
Agency’s discharge requirements as well as ensuring compliance with the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency’s mandate to eliminate illicit discharges of wastewater into 
area lakes and surface waters. Investing in the rehabilitation of the existing sanitary 
sewer system will significantly extend the useful life of the existing infrastructure and 
minimize risk of sanitary sewer backups into resident basements and the associated 
public liability and costs of private property damage. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Waseca that: 

1. City staff is authorized to seek funding through a Capital budget request to
Governor Walz via the Office of Management and Budget.

2. The City Council supports and endorses said application.

Adopted this 6th day of June, 2023. 

____________________________________ 
RANDY L. ZIMMERMAN 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
JULIA HALL 
CITY CLERK 



Title: Gaiter Lake Land Development 

Meeting Date: June 6, 2023 Agenda Item 

Number: 

Action: MOTION 

REQUESTS/PRESENTATIONS 

RESOLUTION 

ORDINANCE 

DISCUSSION 

Supporting 

Documents: 

Attached 

Originating 

Department: 

Administration, Utilities, 

Public Works 

Presented By: City Manager/Director of 

Utilities & Public Works 

Approved By City 

Manager: 

How does this item 

pertain to Vision 2030 

goals? 

Good governance requires deliberation to help move the city forward. 

BACKGROUND: City Council Resolution 2016-44 (attached) explains the 2016 council’s intention with the 

purchased farmland now referred to as the Gaiter Lake Land.  That resolution proposed that the land would be 

used for expansion of various city utilities and for development property. Since 2016, efforts have been made to 

turn Resolution 16-44 into reality. 

The attached resolution options, 23-23 Option A, 23-23 Option B, and 23-23 Option C are potential options to 

help this council decide about the future development of the two parcels.  The three resolution options are 

different in nature; Option A is to sell the land, Option B is to develop the land in partnership with a 

professional developer including financial partnership with the city, and Option C is to develop the land with 

the City Council serving as the lead developer.  Should the council not choose any option listed above at this 

time, then the city would retain land ownership.  The council, at some time, would then need to determine 

whether the future use of the parcel is to be an open space, a park, leased to a farmer, perhaps leased for another 

purpose, or left vacant. 

Development options to date have been based on development through speculation with the city at risk without 

a fixed source of revenue to cover the financial risk.  It has been discussed that lots would sell at a certain rate, 

which would cover the city’s financial risk to make the annual “mortgage payments”, meaning bond payments. 

However, an important question to be answered is, “how much risk is acceptable to the City of Waseca?” 

Regarding risk consideration, Option A, to sell the land, concludes that the city wants to minimize risk and 

receive revenue from the land sale, while Option B provides for sharing risk with a professional developer and 

through potential internal funding options for council consideration. Option C places the city on the path for the 

council to serve as the lead developer and as the responsible agent to manage all risk.  Regarding Option C, I 

have consulted with our bond counsel, Dorsey.  Please read the attached June 1st memo (Dorsey Bond Counsel 

Memo) from Dorsey partner Jay Lindgren which provides a basic primer about a council’s role as the lead 

developer regarding “new levels of financial, project management and timing risks”, “before assuming this 

role.”  

Request for City Council Action 

7C



Tax Increment Financing (TIF) is not currently considered for the following reasons.  First, there are specific 

income restrictions because a housing TIF district is intended for occupancy, in part, by persons or families of 

low to moderate income.  The initial owner/occupant must have income 100% or less of statewide median 

income or county median income for families of two or less (whichever is greater), and 115% of statewide 

median income or county income for families of three or more (whichever is greater).  Second, the TIF plan 

must specify the first year an authority (city) elects to receive tax increment revenue.  With a speculative 

development, this requirement would still need to be determined by the council.  Third, for residential rental  

property, there must be income requirements to rent units as defined in Section 142 (d) of the Internal Revenue 

Code.  This section requires that at least 40% of the units are rented to families with incomes at or below 60% 

of the county median income, or 20% of the units rented to families with incomes at or below 50% of the 

county median income, adjusted for family size.  These rental requirements apply for the life of the housing 

district. The income requirements and other housing TIF district requirements are provided in Minnesota 

Statutes, Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, known as the “TIF Act.” The fourth reason TIF research is not 

presented as a financial option currently is that income from TIF would be speculative yet the city would be 

required to repay the city’s General Obligation Bond (GO Bond) annually.  However, if necessary, the payment 

of such principal and interest would be required by law to be paid for with ad valorem taxes (city taxes) to be 

levied on all taxable property in the city without limitation of rate or amount.  As a simplified example, suppose 

annual bond payments would be $220,000.  Since a 1% tax levy equals about $55,000, then a 4% levy would be 

required to “guaranty” bond payments.  As TIF income or other lot sales income would come into the city, then 

that income would offset levy income based on the city complying with required accounting principles, 

meaning it is important how the sources of income are tracked based on required accounting principles.  The 

fifth reason TIF is not currently considered is because the council has not yet voted to use TIF and thereby 

require income limitations on the development of the Gaiter Lake Land. Much of the information in this 

paragraph was provided by our public finance consultant as a very basic housing TIF primer.   

Like the housing TIF option, tax abatement is not currently considered because income to repay bonds would be 

speculative since there is no predetermined annual abatement amount.  In the case of the Conagra abatement, 

due to the known construction value of their plant, there are fixed annual abatement amounts which are 

repaying the Water Utility for the trunk water main improvements which serve Conagra, the MJ Property 

Holdings LLC facility, improved water quality through better water main circulation, as well as potential west 

interchange development. 

SUMMARY: 

Resolution 23-23 Option A postpones the development conversation for Gaiter Lake Land as it has been 

envisioned in the past and allows the council to focus on other development options moving forward. 

Resolution 23-23 Option B provides a potentially fundable option for the council to solicit proposals from 

developers who have not yet provided proposals for council consideration.  Resolution 23-23 Option C affirms 

that the council desires to begin work as the lead developer.   

RECOMMENDATION:  City Council adoption of an attached resolution, maintain city ownership of the land, 

or provide staff with direction for a path forward through a majority vote of the council. 







1

Carl Sonnenberg

From: Lindgren.Jay@dorsey.com
Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 11:03 AM
To: Carl Sonnenberg
Cc: Alicia Fischer
Subject: Gaiter Lake project

Carl, 

It was good to speak with you yesterday. As requested, I am sending a summary of our discussion and my 
recommendations regarding the Gaiter Lake development area. As the Council considers options, including assuming the 
lead developer role, I always recommend a conversation about the difference between the Council as a land use 
regulator and as a development partner.  Obviously, City Councils know well their role in responding to land use 
approval requests.  However, when assuming the role as developer of City‐owned land, this role changes 
considerably.  As developer, the City now needs to assume new levels of financial, project management and timing 
risks.  Here are my initial suggestions of considerations before assuming this role: 

1. Development management costs
a. Addi onal third party costs ‐‐ The City would need to assume certain costs typically born by the

private sector.  These include design and engineering costs related to site plan development. Even
though the City retains land use approval authority, the required work and costs to prepare the
required documents will be borne by the City.  This will require reten on of third party consultants
to prepare the materials.

b. Project management – Managing a development project requires many tasks that are outside of the
normal role of City staff.  In par cular, the following services (and associated costs) should be
considered:

i. Owner’s Representa ve – I suggest that a third party real estate & construc on
management firm be considered to manage the tasks of coordina ng the design services,
developing detailed financial models and overseeing construc on contracts.

ii. Realtor/real estate closings – Depending on the final site plan and subdivision, you will need
to eventually manage dozens of real estate closings.  Private developers have the resources
to manage these tasks efficiently.  The City will need a plan to coordinate these numerous
closings and to manage the demands of buyers and lenders.

2. Infrastructure financing – I don’t fully know the costs of designing and construc ng sewer, water and
streets.  I’m assuming it is general in the range of $2.5 to $4 million.  These costs will need to be assumed by
the City. Here is a general overview of the financial tools available to the City and the risks associated with
each:

a. General Obliga on U lity Revenue Bonds – for projects expected to be financed solely with
revenues of the applicable u lity. 

b. General Obliga on Improvement Bonds – for infrastructure project costs at least 20% assessed
against the pla ed property once subdivided.  So, the City should financially model what the cash
flows requirements are to pay the special assessments.  This analysis should consider the  ming
risks associated with development and how cash flow demands may increase if lot sales are delayed
due to market condi ons.  You should also consider that many mortgage lenders prefer (or even
require) that special assessments be paid prior to lending because assessment (like property taxes)
are a higher priority than a mortgage. So, this can have the prac cal impact of reducing market rate
purchase prices because a purchaser may need to accommodate paying the specials at closing.



2

c. Tax Abatement – Presumably the property is currently exempt from real property tax because it is
City‐owned.  As the new lots become taxable, the City could use its ability to abate the taxes and
capture the City’s por on of the property taxes. This revenue stream could then either be used (1)
to pay the debt service on corresponding revenue bonds or (2) create a semi‐annual payment
stream to the City. The  ming of lot sales again becomes a risk to the City.  If the City issues bonds,
the City will need a certain revenue source to make up any difference between the actual
abatement proceeds and the debt service requirements (the size of the bond issue may not exceed
the es mated abatements). This is typically done through a minimum assessment agreement that
says the developer will agree to future valua ons as if all lots are developed and have a sales history
on which to bases assessed valua ons.  This means the City will also have the risk of making those
agreed upon minimum payments and will need a revenue source available to do so.  One way to
accomplish this is to pledge the City’s general obliga on as a secondary payment source for the
revenue bonds.  This also creates a risk that taxes will need to imposed within the City if the
revenues are insufficient.  You should also note that in a revenue bond, which are viewed less
favorably by the market and seldom used, the bondholders will likely require a debt service reserve
fund to even out any deficiencies in the abatement revenue stream.  This limits the amount of bond
proceeds you can receive.

d. Tax increment – We also discussed why I don’t think tax increment is a valuable tool in this
project.  In general, a greenfield does not qualify under State law for a tax increment district. An
excep on exists if very affordable housing is built within the TIF district. For rental housing, the
limits are either (1) 20 percent of the units are occupied by individuals whose income is 50 percent
or less of the area median income or (2)  p40ercent of the units are occupied by individuals whose
income is 60 percent or less of the area median income.  If one or more projects within the
development meet these requirements, there may be increment available to assist with some
por on of the infrastructure costs.  However, remember that in order to make such affordable
housing projects financially viable, the project itself is likely to require tax increment to be built.

I hope this brief overview provides a summary of some of the issues and risks involved in directly developing City‐owned 
land.  I am available at your convenience for any additional questions or discussion. 

Best regards, 

Jay 

Jay R. Lindgren 
Partner 
Co‐Chair, Development & Infrastructure Group

DORSEY  &  WHITNEY  LLP
Suite 1500, 50 South Sixth Street | Minneapolis, MN 55402‐1498
P: 612.492.6875    F: 952.516.5636    C: 612.205.6875   

WWW.DORSEY.COM  ::  MINNEAPOLIS  ::  BIO  ::  V‐CARD

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION 
E‐mails from this firm normally contain confidential and privileged material, and are for the sole use of the intended recipient. 
Use or distribution by an unintended recipient is prohibited, and may be a violation of law. If you believe that you received 
this e‐mail in error, please do not read this e‐mail or any attached items.  Please delete the e‐mail and all attachments, 
including any copies thereof, and inform the sender that you have deleted  the e‐mail, all attachments and any copies thereof. 
Thank you.



3

 EXTERNAL EMAIL SENDER – Think Before You Click !! 



OPTION A 

CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION No. 23-23 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 

TO SOLICIT BIDS FOR THE SALE OF LAND PARCEL ID 170170850 AND LAND PARCEL ID 170200850 

BOTH REFERRED TO AS THE GAITER LAKE DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2016-44 authorized acquisition of both referenced parcels for public purposes and 

as a development property; and 

WHEREAS, the property was purchased for $650,000 to comply with the establishment of a conservation 

easement mandated through the Pondview Subdivision Settlement Agreement with the Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR); and 

WHEREAS, the properties were intended to be utilized for the construction of a regional stormwater 

pond, the conservation of open space, and the expansion of water and electric utilities infrastructure 

with the understanding that the entire property would likely not be needed for such purposes; and  

WHEREAS, it was resolved in Resolution 2016-44 that those portions of the properties not utilized for the 

above purposes were deemed “Development Property” pursuant to Chapter 12, Section 12.05 of the 

City of Waseca Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council has debated the merits of retaining said properties for the purposes 

detailed in Resolution 2016-44 and has also debated the worthiness of the reasons not to retain the 

properties to comply with the entirety of the intentions provided within Resolution 2016-44.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL that the City Manager is hereby 

authorized to obtain and prepare necessary documents and to advertise for bids for City Council 

consideration to sell the properties less the DNR mandated conservation easement within each property 

parcel. 

Passed by the Waseca City Council on the 6th day of June 2023. 

ATTEST 

_____________________________ ___________________________  

Julia Hall, City Clerk    Randy Zimmerman, Mayor 



OPTION B 

CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION No. 23-23 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 

TO SOLICIT PROPOSALS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF LAND PARCEL ID 170170850 

REFERRED TO AS THE GAITER LAKE DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2016-44 authorized acquisition of both referenced parcels for public purposes and 

as a development property; and 

WHEREAS, the property was purchased for $650,000 to comply with the establishment of a conservation 

easement mandated through the Pondview Subdivision Settlement Agreement with the Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR); and 

WHEREAS, the properties were intended to be utilized for the construction of a regional stormwater 

pond, the conservation of open space, and the expansion of water and electric utilities infrastructure 

with the understanding that the entire property would likely not be needed for such purposes; and  

WHEREAS, it was resolved in Resolution 2016-44 that those portions of the properties not utilized for the 

above purposes were deemed “Development Property” pursuant to Chapter 12, Section 12.05 of the 

City of Waseca Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council has debated the merits of retaining said properties for the purposes 

detailed in Resolution 2016-44, and has also debated the worthiness of the reasons not to retain the 

properties to comply with the entirety of the intentions provided within Resolution 2016-44; and  

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council hereby determines to develop parcel 170170850 (north parcel) as a 

residential development compliant with DNR rules and regulations and to authorize the City Manager to 

prepare a Request for Proposals with specifications to provide for financial subsidies; and  

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council has determined to invest in future Electric Substation and Water 

Tower infrastructure to serve the long-term needs of the Electric Utility, Water Utility, and potentially 

invest in a Storm Water Utility pond by authorizing the transfer of funds from each utility to purchase 

parcel 170200850 (south parcel), which will subsidize infrastructure construction within parcel 

170170850 (north parcel); and  

WHEREAS, the proposed utilities transfers are $300,000 from the Electric Utility, $100,000 from the 

Water Utility, and $100,000 from the Storm Water Utility; and  

WHEREAS, to subsidize infrastructure improvements in the north parcel, the City Council shall consider a 

loan transfer from the Electric Utility in an amount to be determined; and  



WHEREAS, the City Council shall consider a transfer of funds from the Annexation and Growth Fund to 

subsidize infrastructure improvements in the north parcel in an amount to be determined.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL that the City Manager is hereby 

authorized to solicit proposals for City Council consideration to develop parcel 170170850 (north parcel). 

Passed by the Waseca City Council on the 6th day of June 2023. 

 

ATTEST 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________              

Julia Hall, City Clerk     Randy Zimmerman, Mayor   



OPTION C 

CITY OF WASECA, MINNESOTA 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION No. 23-23 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL 

TO DEVELOP LAND PARCEL ID 170170850  

REFERRED TO AS THE GAITER LAKE DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2016-44 authorized acquisition of both referenced parcels for public purposes and 

as a development property; and 

WHEREAS, the property was purchased for $650,000 to comply with the establishment of a conservation 

easement mandated through the Pondview Subdivision Settlement Agreement with the Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR); and 

WHEREAS, the properties were intended to be utilized for the construction of a regional stormwater 

pond, the conservation of open space, and the expansion of water and electric utilities infrastructure 

with the understanding that the entire property would likely not be needed for such purposes; and  

WHEREAS, it was resolved in Resolution 2016-44 that those portions of the properties not utilized for the 

above purposes were deemed “Development Property” pursuant to Chapter 12, Section 12.05 of the 

City of Waseca Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council has debated the merits of retaining said properties for the purposes 

detailed in Resolution 2016-44, and has also debated the worthiness of the reasons not to retain the 

properties to comply with the entirety of the intentions provided within Resolution 2016-44; and  

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council hereby determines to develop parcel 170170850 (north parcel) as a 

residential development compliant with DNR rules and regulations and to authorize the City Manager to 

prepare a Request for Proposals with specifications to provide for financial subsidies; and  

WHEREAS, the Waseca City Council has determined to invest in future Electric Substation and Water 

Tower infrastructure to serve the long-term needs of the Electric Utility, Water Utility, and potentially 

invest in a Storm Water Utility pond by authorizing the transfer of funds from each utility to purchase 

parcel 170200850 (south parcel), which will subsidize infrastructure construction within parcel 

170170850 (north parcel); and  

WHEREAS, the proposed utilities transfers are $300,000 from the Electric Utility, $100,000 from the 

Water Utility, and $100,000 from the Storm Water Utility; and  

WHEREAS, to subsidize infrastructure improvements in the north parcel, the City Council shall consider a 

loan transfer from the Electric Utility in an amount to be determined; and 



WHEREAS, the City Council shall consider a transfer of funds from the Annexation and Growth Fund to 

subsidize infrastructure improvements in the north parcel in an amount to be determined.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WASECA CITY COUNCIL that the City Manager is hereby 

authorized to hire a financial consultant, bond counsel, and other professional services necessary to 

prepare a proposed development plan for the Waseca City Council’s review. 

Passed by the Waseca City Council on the 6th day of June 2023. 

 

ATTEST 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________                 

Julia Hall, City Clerk     Randy Zimmerman, Mayor   



RESTRICTIONS ON THE CITY-OWNED GAITER LAKE PROPERTIES 
(Per Resident Request) 

 
 

1. The approximately 8.5-acre Conserva on Easement along the east edge of the proper es is 
considered part of, and open space for, the Pondview Subdivision to the north.  No 
development can take place within this easement area and it cannot be counted towards the 
open space requirement for any future Gaiter Lake development. 

2. Any development within the Shoreland Overlay (approximately 1,000 feet from the ordinary 
high-water level of Gaiter Lake) must include a minimum of 50% open space.  Open space 
typically consists of outlots reserved for parks, stormwater management, or the preserva on 
of natural areas.     

3. Developable lots within the Shoreland Overlay are limited to a maximum of 25% impervious 
area.  Impervious areas include buildings, pavement, and compacted gravel areas.  (The City 
has not yet received a confirmed rule from the DNR regarding parcels that are par ally within 
the Shoreland Overlay and par ally outside of it.) 

4. Street right-of-way (ROW) would not be subject to the 25% maximum impervious area as long 
as the combined impervious area within the ROW and open space outlots does not exceed 
25% (this s pula on was communicated to the City by DNR staff but has not yet been 
confirmed). 

5. The former property owners, Tim and David Lewer, have right of first refusal for any poten al 
agricultural leases on the proper es. 

6. See the a ached “Shoreland Overlay District” for the City’s current zoning restric ons on the 
por ons of the proper es that lie within the Shoreland Overlay.  Please note that residen al 
subdivisions can exceed the stated dwelling unit densi es if the land is designed and approved 
as a Planned Unit Development (§ 154.053-B-2). 


















	1 Agenda
	5A TW- Waseca Residential Tax Abatement Program
	6A1 Revised 5-2-2023 Minutes 
	6A2 Minutes Draft
	6A3 Work Session Minutes Draft
	6B Council-List of Expenditures
	6B1 List of Expenditures
	6C The Mill
	6D Legion 228
	6E WCAS Temp License
	6F RCCA C and A Liquor License
	6F1 C and A Design
	6G RCCA IUOE-PW Union Contract
	6G1 CITY WASECA PW Union Contract and LOAs (5-19-23)
	6H RCCA 1025 Clear Lake Drive
	6H1 Resolution 23-25 1025 Clear Lake Drive
	6H2 1025 Clear Lake Drive  RTA Agreement
	6I RCCA MnDOT Airport M&O Grant Contract
	6I1 MnDOT Airport M&O Grant Contract
	6I2 Res 23-22 MnDOT Airport M&O Grant
	CERTIFICATION

	6J Graham Johnson Resignation
	6J1 Andrew Fischer Airport Board Application
	6K Resolution  Off Site Gambling Waseca Hockey
	6K1 Res Waseca Hockey
	6K2 LG230 WCFF - Signed
	7A RCCA Updated Personnel Policy
	7A Section 10 Personnel Policies
	7B RCCA State Bonding Authorization and Support
	7B1 Resolution 23-26 of Support for Bonding Application - Water Tower
	7B2 Resolution 23-27 of Support for Bonding Application - I&I
	7C RCCA Gaiter Lake Development
	7C1 16-44 - Authorizing Acquisition of Property 120170800 & 12020600 - signed
	7C2 Dorsey Email
	7C3 Resolution 23-23 (A)
	7C4 Resolution 23-23 (B)
	7C5 Resolution 23-23 (C)
	7C6 Gaiter Lake Restrictions



